TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA

ANNUAL REPORT

2013

2013 Annual Report ii

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TBCSA Members in Good Standing .........................................................................................................

1

TBCSA Corporate Profile – Who we are ..................................................................................................

2

TBCSA Corporate Profile – What we do ..................................................................................................

2

TBCSA Corporate Profile – Where do we fit in .......................................................................................

3

TBCSA Member Associations and Affiliates ............................................................................................

4

Message from TBCSA Board Chairman ...................................................................................................

7

CEOs Report ............................................................................................................................................

8

Progress Report: 10 Macro-Economic Priorities .....................................................................................

13

Finance, HR & Administration Report .....................................................................................................

17

Member Relations Report ......................................................................................................................

18

Corporate Communications Report ........................................................................................................

20

2014 Consolidated Activity Plan .............................................................................................................

23

HICA 2013 ...............................................................................................................................................

26

TBI Consolidated Report 2013/14 ..........................................................................................................

28

The Summit 2013 ...................................................................................................................................

31

TBCSA Management Board ....................................................................................................................

35

TBCSA Annual Financial Statements .......................................................................................................

37

TOMSA Corporate Profile .......................................................................................................................

51

Message from TOMSA Board Chairman .................................................................................................

52

TOMSA Marketing & Promotion .............................................................................................................

53

TOMSA Annual Collections .....................................................................................................................

55

TOMSA Annual Financial Statements .....................................................................................................

57

TOMSA Board Members .........................................................................................................................

69

TOMSA Levy Collectors in Good Standing ..............................................................................................

70

Key Travel & Tourism Contacts ...............................................................................................................

72

TBCSA MEMBERS IN GOOD STANDING
TBCSA MEMBERSHIP AT 31 DECEMBER 2013
ORGANISATION

ORGANISATION

First National Bank

ProServ South Africa
Fair Trade Tourism (FTT)

Airports Company of South Africa

Golding Hotel Investment Consultants

Avis Southern Africa Limited

Grant Thornton

Budget Rent-A-Car

Johannesburg Tourism Company

City Lodge Group

Leriba Hotel & Spa

Legacy Hotels & Resorts International

Siyabona Africa

Protea Hotels

Stormsriver Adventures

South African Airways

Mad Meerkat Tours

Southern Sun Hotels, Inns & Resorts
Sun International
Tourvest
Expedia
Imperial
Europcar
Peermont-Global Resorts SA
SA National Parks
Thebe Tourism
Industrial Development Corporation

ASATA
FEDHASA
SATSA
SAACI
AASA
PHASA
BARSA
SAVRALA
EXSA
SABOA
SAYTC

The Blue Train

AHI

South African Express Airways

NAA SA

Thompsons Africa

VOASA

Three Cities Hospitality

FGASA

AA of SA

ORCSA

Strategic Partners in Tourism (TEP)
Forever Resorts

Our Mission
By ... engaging and influencing industry stakeholders and Government on behalf of organised tourism business.
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Our Vision
To be ... the trusted, respected and informed Voice of organised tourism business in South Africa
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Our Purpose
To serve our Members for the purpose of building the pride, economy and identity of our desti(nation), now
and in the future.

CORPORATE PROFILE

WHO ARE WE?
Tourism Business Council of South Africa
(TBCSA) is the umbrella organisation representing
organised businesses in the South African travel and
tourism industry.
Our mandate is to Lobby the private sector, Facilitate
identified industry programmes, Monitor and Influence
macro-economic developments which impact on the
industry for the purpose of building the pride, economy
and identity of our desti(nation).
We are a member-based organisation, made up of
sector associations, business affiliates, leading travel and
tourism corporations, as well as corporate companies
who recognise the value of tourism to South Africa and to
the general economy.

We represent the local travel and tourism private sector
interests on macro-economic issues that affect business
at both national and international levels. TBCSA engages
widely and represents the voice of business in structures
and bodies such as Business Unity South Africa (BUSA)
and the World Travel and Tourism Council (WTTC).
We engage and lobby on behalf of business to encourage
the creation of a vibrant tourism environment in which
businesses of all sizes can thrive, expand and remain
competitive. Our aim is to ensure that tourism business
plays a constructive role in the country’s economic
development, growth and transformation.
TBCSA is a proud administrator of the tourism levy
(TOMSA), an initiative supported widely by business in
the industry to boost the promotion and marketing of
destination South Africa.

WHAT WE DO?
Our primary focus areas include:
•

Lobbying for the reduction in major tourism
impediments or barriers to business – be it
legislative or otherwise

•

Engaging role-players on skills and human
resource development imperatives within the
industry

•

Raising funds for marketing and promotion of
destination South Africa through TOMSA – the
tourism levy

•

Mainstreaming travel and tourism in the broader
economy

•

Developing partnerships to enhance quality
assurance and service excellence in the industry

•

Providing leadership to the private sector in
areas such as Responsible Tourism and the Green
Economy.

•

Promoting investment in travel and tourism.

•

Propagating for the improvement of safety and security
– particularly for local and international tourists

•

Facilitating the creation of an environment that
supports enterprise development

•

Spearheading the transformation of the travel and
tourism industry
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Important focus areas:
•

Providing support and ensuring the production of reliable tourism statistics

•

Developing world-class tourism standards

•

Propagating a travel culture in South Africa

•

Creating a one-stop communication and information conduit

•

Providing leadership in the supply side of the industry

The TBCSA is a non-profit organisation that attracts resources for projects that support the growth and
sustainability of the industry.

CORPORATE PROFILE

WHERE DO WE FIT IN?
GOVERNMENT
BUSA

PRESS

CIVIL
SOCIETY

AHI

BARSA

EXSA

FEDHASA

FGASA

HOSA

NAA-SA

ORCSA

PHASA

RASA

SAACI

SABOA

SATSA

SAVRALA

SAYTC

VOASA

CORPORATE
MEMBERS

TRAVEL & TOURISM TRADE
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ASATA
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AASA

OUR MEMBER ASSOCIATIONS
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Sector associations proudly affiliated to the TBCSA:

3. AHI

1. AASA

2. ASATA

The Airlines Association of
Southern Africa, known as AASA,
is an organisation formed to
represent the mutual interests
of its members. Membership is
open to all airlines based in African
countries south of the equator,
including Indian Ocean Islands.

The Association of South African
Travel Agents (ASATA) was formed
in 1956 as a representative
forum to promote professional
service with security for both its
members and their clients. The
ASATA membership includes South
African retail travel agents, travel
management companies and
wholesalers.

The Afrikaanse Handelsinstituut
(AHI) has a strong reputation
for service to its members,
intellectual leadership and a
strong development orientation.
Since 1994 the organisation
has broadened its membership
to better reflect and promote
cooperation with other likeminded organizations at local level.

4. EXSA

5. FEDHASA

6. FGASA

The role of the Exhibition and
Event Association of Southern
Africa (EXSA) is to serve the
exhibition and events industry in
South Africa. Its core strategy is
to actively grow and develop the
two industries within Southern
Africa through the promotion
of unique member benefits and
raising their member’s profile in
the marketplace.

Since 1949 the Federated
Hospitality Association of South
Africa (FEDHASA) has been
representing the South African
hospitality industry on a local,
provincial, national and global
level to protect the interests of
all stakeholders of the industry,
thereby enabling members to
achieve their objectives.

The Field Guides Association of
Southern Africa (FGASA) provides
educational opportunities to
promote the conservation and
rehabilitation of the cultural and
natural heritage of Southern
Africa. FGASA maintains and
serves a professional association
of highly-trained nature guides,
tour operators and hospitality
institutions.

7. HOSA

8. NAA-SA

9. ORCSA

The Hiking Organisation of South
Africa (HOSA) aims to assist roleplayers in creating a vibrant and
sustainable yet lucrative hiking
industry for the benefit of the
hiking sport in Southern Africa.

The National Accommodation
Association (NAA-SA) is a growing
network of quality smaller
accommodation providers around
South Africa. The organization
boasts membership of over
1000 quality inspected members
nationwide.

Off-Road Council of South Africa
(ORCSA), formerly known as the
National Off-Road Council of
South Africa (NOW) is a Section 21
Company set up by the off-road
community (off-road users, guides
and tour operators, trainers, trail
owners, and related businesses) in
2005.

11. RASA

12. SAACI

Professional Hunters’ Association
of South Africa (PHASA) is a
leading authority on the hunting
profession in South Africa.
The organisation supports
the conservation, ecologically
sustainable development and the
use of natural resources, through
the promotion of ethical hunting to
ensure environmental protection
for current and future generations.

The Restaurant Association of
South Africa (RASA) is a nonprofit organisation promoting a
pro-restaurant agenda on critical
restaurant issues like smoking,
liquor legislation, food safety, and
employment.

The Southern African Association
for the Conference Industry
(SAACI) is dedicated to maintaining
and improving the standards of
efficiency and professionalism for
the conference and events industry
in Southern Africa.

13. SABOA

14. SATSA

15. SAVRALA

The Southern African Bus
Operators’ Association (SABOA)
has become known and respected
as the voice of the bus industry.
The association represents its
members at national and provincial
level and fulfils a watchdog
function regarding policy and
legislation, facilitates training for
its SMME members and negotiates
benefits for its members.

The Southern African Travel
Services Association (SATSA) is
a member-driven, non-profit
association representing the
private sector. The association
represents transport providers, tour
operators, destination management
companies, accommodation
suppliers, tourism brokers,
adventure tourism providers,
business tourism providers and
tourism services provides.

The Southern African Vehicle
Rental Association (SAVRALA) is
a trade association representing
Southern Africa’s combined
vehicle rental, leasing and fleet
management industries. SAVRALA
strives to ensure and protect its
members’ interests at the highest
level.

16. SAYTC

17. VOASA

18. BARSA

The South African Youth Travel
Confederation (SAYTC) is a
non-profit organisation, whose
membership comprise of four
sectors – backpacking, education,
tours and transport as well as
volunteering.

Vacation Ownership Association
of South Africa (VOASA), was
established in 1990 as an
organization representing the
interests of the respective
stakeholders with its primary
objective being to “create, maintain
and develop an environment within
which the long-term viability and
growth of vacation ownership
through shared vacation ownership
can be optimally ensured.

The Board of Airline
Representatives of South Africa
(BARSA) is the representative
association of the international
airlines operating to South Africa.
BARSA represents member
interests in most countries in the
world. BARSA provides the single
concerted voice on policy and other
matters in relation to government
and other industry stakeholders.
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10. PHASA
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OUR MEMBER ASSOCIATIONS

OUR BUSINESS AFFILIATES
The following organisations also serve as business member affiliates:

19. AA of SA
The The Automobile Association
(AA) Quality Assured Endorsement
Programme is a marketing tool
that assists establishments to
present an endorsement of quality
to the discerning traveller. The
AA’s experienced assessors visit
each establishment annually and
assist them in maintaining and
up grading to meet the changing
demands of their guests.

21. TEP

20. FTT

Tourism Enterprise Partnership
(TEP) is the operating entity for
Strategic Partners in Tourism a nonprofit company who utilises funding
from corporate South Africa and
Government to facilitate the growth,
development and sustainability
of small tourism businesses in the
country.

Fair Trade Tourism (FTT) is a nonprofit organisation that promotes
responsible tourism in Southern
Africa and beyond. This is done
by growing awareness about
responsible tourism to travelers;
assisting tourism businesses to
operate more sustainably and by
facilitating a Fair Trade Tourism
certification programme across
Southern Africa.

R Kata and D Lofeudo - Expedia at Indaba
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C Zweigenthal (AASA) and T Peege (Dept of Transport) at
Tourism Leadership Dialogue on Travel Facilitation

L Smith (Avis) and D Frost (SATSA) at Tourism Leadership Dialogue on Travel Facilitation

MESSAGE FROM THE TBCSA CHAIRMAN

As I reflect on my second term as Chairman of
the TBCSA Board, I am reminded of a popular
African proverb which says: “if you want to go
fast, go alone. If you want to go far, go with
others”

There is no doubt in my mind none of the work we
do, or the goals we have set CAN be realised without a
collective effort. I am inspired to see how strongly the
travel and tourism trade continues to rally behind this
organisation.

Accommodation establishments in small towns and rural
destinations continue to experience difficulties. Some
are shutting down; others offer discounted rates over an
extended period of time in order to attract elusive guests.
So it’s been a year of challenges for many industry players
with more anticipated in the coming year.
Even as the industry faces these challenges, it is
imperative to tackle transformation issues in the longer
term interests of a thriving tourism sector. Tackling youth
unemployment has become a national priority if we are
to achieve a stable South African society. Similarly, we
must prioritise the creation of opportunities for small
entrepreneurs. We should find ways for working with
the public sector to tap into existing funds for youth
unemployment and for SMMEs.

This year, the TBCSA collaborated with the Department
of Tourism to host an event recognising the contribution
of women travel in travel and tourism. This initiative
presents a unique proposition for the sector to tackle
issues of women empowerment. However this is not a
task that can be left up to the women only to tackle but
requires the support of everyone.
In closing, I want to thank members of TBCSA Board
and TOMSA Board for their participation in the various
meetings and support. My gratitude also extends to
the Chief Executive Officer, Mme Mmatšatši Ramawela
and her team for their dedication and tireless efforts to
achieve the goals of the organisation.
I think this more closely reflects the perspectives of the
tourism industry for which we are a secretariat. On the
other hand, we are raising greater issues – the adoption
of which would create a sustainable industry. Certainly,
we will go far, if we continue to travel this road together.

Mavuso Msimang, Board Chairman
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Despite the growth in international tourist arrivals, the
number of days spent in the country and tourist spend
have diminished. Domestic tourism has not quite taken
off. As is known, this is always the backbone of any
tourism industry. It is because of the economic situation
and high unemployment rates. We welcome the reintroduction of the Sho’t Left campaign.

Mavuso Msimang, Board Chairman, TBCSA
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2013 turned out to be a year of mixed blessings. On the
one hand green shoots are slowly emerging with a hint
of a recovery in the market. However, the fluid economic
environment and the continual rise in operating costs
continue to hamper our ambition to grow capacity and
create much needed jobs in the short to medium-term.

CEOs REPORT

We will remember 2013 as the year in which the global
travel and tourism industry reached a new milestone of
having 1 billion tourists. For South Africa and Africa, we
will remember the year because we continued to be the
only region that recorded growth in tourist arrivals of
5,6% which is above the global average of 4%.

For us in the TBCSA, we will remember 2013 as one of
the busiest years in terms of activities within and outside
the organisation. We continued to work closely with
our member associations to profile the sector, grow the
tourism levies, whilst at the same time contributing to the
national agenda of developing and growing the travel and
tourism’s contribution to GDP and our country’s economy.
Below is a summary of the achievements we have made
in 2013.

STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP OF THE
ORGANISATION

Ms. Mmatšatši Ramawela, Chief Executive
Officer
the year. The business plan that was presented at
the Board meeting of 5th December 2013 was in line
with Strategic Plan of 2009 as updated in 2012.
•

Third Phase is the development of an Annual
Activity Plan. This is document that gives more
detail on the actual activities that the Secretariat will
embark on during the course of the year to deliver
on the objectives and mandate of the organisation
in line with the Broad Strategic Plan. The annual
activity plan for 2014 will be developed early in
January 2014 to be presented to the Board meeting
of February 2014 for consideration and approval.
This therefore means that for the months of January
and February, the Secretariat works on the annual
Activity Plan, finalise the work of the 2013, which
includes items such as the Annual Report, the
Audited Financial Statements and Membership
Updates.

•

Fourth Phase involves the completion of Annual
Performance Appraisal Plans for the various
functional units within the organisation. This takes
place in the first weeks of March as part of the
implementation of the 2014 business and activity
plans.

It is pleasing to report and note that unlike other
member-based organisations within our sector, the TBCSA
has embraced the practice of having plans and strategies
that guide and govern the implementation of its work.
In terms of providing strategic leadership within the
organisation, this is a continuing task, which is governed
by the broad strategic plan of the organisation.
For the coming year, we are on our way to making the
necessary plans to ensure that our work is within the
prescripts of our Board and membership. We do this by
following a planning and evaluation process. We have a
planning cycle that ensures that our business plans and
strategies deliver on our mandate.
The planning cycle is:-

Annual Report 2013
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•

•

First Phase is the development of the Broad
Strategic Plan by the Board to guide the Secretariat
in developing the organisational business plan.
The strategic plan is developed every two years with
a new Board coming into office, while the business
plan is developed annually. The Board will be
reconvening in 2014 to develop the Strategic Plan for
the 2015 -2016 financial period.
Second Phase is the development of the
Organisational Business Plan on an annual basis
by the Secretariat. The Secretariat holds a twoday planning session which results in a high-level
business plan that gets presented to the Board for
consideration and approval at its final meeting for

MEMBER RELATIONS
This has been one of thee most successful years for the
TBCSA in terms of member recruitment, retention and
relations. The following are some of the key deliverables
and achievements thereof:
Membership Status and Growth
We are proud to report that the organization has a total
of 52 members as compared to 47 in 2012.

CEOs REPORT
The membership is largely composed of sectoral
associations. During the year under review we welcomed
the following member associations: •

The Board of Airline Representatives (BARSA),
which used to be a member but withdrew back
in 2007.

•

The Exhibition and Event Association of Southern
Africa (EXSA)

•

The Hiking Organisation Association of South
Africa (HOSA-VOSA), which falls under the
Limited Member category offering complimentary
membership for the first twelve months of affiliation.

•

We also welcomed Meerkat Travel and Tours and
the Forever Resorts Group as new members in the
individual business membership category.

Relations with Member Associations
We work well with our sectoral member associations,
considering that they are the primary constituency of
the TBCSA. We engaged with them in the following ways
during the year:-

•

We engaged them through our negotiations for the
Local Tourism Association (LTA) agreements in a bid
to grow the TOMSA base. In 2013, LTA agreements
were concluded with two member associations
FEDHASA (Inland and Western Cape) and Tshwane
Tourism and more work will continue into the new
year
We also engage the associations and individual
members through the Annual General Meeting
that took place in August. We are pleased to
have attracted new member associations into
the Board – VOASA and EXSA (new) and BARSA
and PHASA through co-option. We believe that
this will contribute towards diversity in the Board
and strengthen the TBCSA’s role as the VOICE of
organised businesses in the industry

Levy Collector Status
We recruited a total of 58 levy collectors during the year
under review, which helped to maintain the number of
levy collectors to 506 – which was the number at the
beginning of the financial year. The numbers are definitely
reducing as more and more product and service providers
question the relevance of the levy system and its value
proposition.
Levy Collection Status
We collected R 115 894 847 as compared to R 102 831 670
in 2012.
Transfers to SA Tourism
For the period, we have transferred R106 596 786 TOMSA
levies to SA Tourism, which is more as compared to
R96 747 144 in 2012.
Relationship with SA Tourism
Our relationship with SA Tourism show major
improvements, largely because of the attitude and
approach of the new management.
The CEO of SA Tourism meets with the TBCSA CEO on a
quarterly basis to deal with operational issues between
the two organisations – be it the implementation of our
3-year Memorandum Of Understanding and other matters.
Although we had difficulties with certain meeting dates,
on the overall, we were able to meet with the SAT CEO on
many occasions. We have already scheduled our meetings
for 2014 and we hope that he will be able to honour all of
them unlike in 2013.
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•

Through the CEOs Forum we discuss various issues
within the industry and find common ways to
address them. We involve them in our quarterly
face-to-face interactions with our individual
members who are also their members

Although the task of growing the TOMSA levy collector
base and increasing the levy collection is a challenging
one, we work hard to achieve these objectives. During the
year under review, we achieved the following targets:

“It is pleasing to report and note that unlike other member-based organizations
within our sector, the TBCSA has embraced the practice of having plans and
strategies that guide and govern the implementation of its work.”

Annual Report 2013
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TOMSA MANAGEMENT

CEOs REPORT

(CONTINUED)

TOMSA Road Shows
At the end of 2012, the Board approved our participation
in SA Tourism’s Power of One road shows, which according
to SA Tourism, would take the place of the annual TOMSA
road shows. We fully embraced the concept hoping that it
will help us to achieve two objectives, of broadening the
awareness about TOMSA while providing a platform to
recruit new levy collectors and profiling the TBCSA.
Having participated in the road shows for the year, we
realised that while its helping us in profiling TOMSA and
TBCSA, it was not helping us in growing our levy collector
base. We then discussed the possibility of bringing back
the annual TOMSA Levy Collector feedback session, using
digital platforms.
We were unable to get SA Tourism’s commitment for
2013 and are now planning to conduct these sessions
early in 2014. We owe it to levy collectors in the major
centres such as the greater Cape Town, Johannesburg and
Durban areas, which is where many of the levy collectors
are situated. The Power of One road shows don’t include
these major centres but instead focus on the smaller
towns and cities.
Administration of the Levies
The administration of the TOMSA levies continues to
improve with more work put in “cleaning” our accounting,
marketing and sales databases, levy collector contracts
and implementing stringent debt collecting systems and
procedures.

Strategic Tourism Projects
This portfolio is at the centre of our objective of ensuring
that the organization is financially and operationally
sustainable in the long run. Our work in this area is
dictated by the need to deliver increased VALUE to our
members while at the same time leveraging funding from
various sources:
1.

Airlift and Air Access

2.

Land and Infrastructure Development

3.

Safety and Security

4.	Skills Development and Human Resources
Development/Training
5.

Transformation and Empowerment

6.

Travel and Tourism Service Excellence

7.

Knowledge Management and Market Intelligence

8.

Responsible Tourism

9.

Investment Promotion

10. Destination Marketing
Although we have struggled in securing the most
appropriate human resources to coordinate our work in
this portfolio, we continued to make great strides in most
of them. Pages 13-16 of this annual report outlines areas
where there was activity and achievements in the year
under review.

Annual Report 2013
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Through these improved efforts, we have been able to
ensure the regularity of levy collection payments by many
levy collectors who were defaulting. We were able to

achieve all this because we have a dedicated finance staff
member focusing on these aspects of TOMSA, i.e. the
Bookkeeper we employed in May 2013.

M Ramawela, TBCSA, T Xasa, Deputy Minister of Tourism and Dr. N Songelwa, SANParks

CEOs REPORT
PUBLIC RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
We are pleased with the improving coverage
of the TBCSA and the developments within the
industry by the media. The coverage is becoming
more insightful and in-depth, which is a sign of the
media’s growing understanding and familiarity with
the industry.
We have also improved our use of electronic media
platforms such as the websites and social media and
the key achievements are as follows: •

•

their ease of use by “visitors”. We also applied
the same principles on our other websites, which
includes SATTIC and HICA.
•

Increased use of social media platforms already
established, which includes Facebook, Twitter
and LinkedIn, since we employed a dedicated
Content Development staff member. He has
proved to be a great addition to the Secretariat
team.

•

Communication with members and levy
collectors through newsletters proved to be a
valuable way to share and impart knowledge
to the rest of the industry. We release the
newsletters interchangeably on a monthly basis.

The growth in circulation and readership of our
digital magazine Tourism Business Africa in 2013,
with an increased diversification of writers and
contributors. In 2014, the focus is going to be
on getting the magazine to pay for itself through
advertising and other means.

We also ensure that there is a newsletter for the
internal stakeholders - the staff to ensure that
they are also updated about the developments
within and outside the organisation.

Improved contents on both the TOMSA and
TBCSA websites, and the focus on improving

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

•

Our levy collection figures are improved as
compared to last year.

•

The payment of TBCSA membership fees is standing
at R 1 795 286 with 94% of the members having
paid their fees by August 2013. This is compared to
the fee payment figure of R 1 774 710 at the end of
August 2012

In terms of travel, we went over budget mainly because of
travel associated with the Power of One road shows, the
travel of increased Board members coming from outside
the Gauteng province and increased travelling costs on
planned local and overseas events.

•

As a result of our TOMSA Levy collections, payment
of membership fees and funds raised from projects,
we have achieved a healthy surplus.

•

Overall, our spending remained under budget
because of savings in other areas including staff
salaries in certain project areas.

•

In terms of expenditure, we found ourselves going
above budgets in few areas, which include the UK
Project, the Tourism Safety Initiative (TSI) and in our
travel and accommodation for staff and Board.

•

In general, we believe that the organisation is in
a strong financial position, which will allow it to
continue work on delivering increased value to the
members.

•

We have strong administrative capabilities and
corporate governance practices.
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We did not budget for certain aspects of the UK project
because we were unsure of what will be required to pay
whenever the project manager travelled abroad to the
associated with the project. Neither did we anticipate
taking over the expenses of the TSI incurred as early as
September 2013.
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We believe that the continued improvements in the
performance of the industry and the broader economy,
has had a positive impact of the industry as a whole, and
the finances of the organization.

CEOs REPORT

(CONTINUED)

OFFICE ADMINISTRATION AND BOARD
MANAGEMENT
From an office administration perspective, we believe that
we are running a small but effective office – one that’s
in touch with the needs and aspirations of its members.
We believe that we relate well with the Board and that
we continue to be guided by them in doing our work.
Some of the key achievements and improvements in
terms of our relations with the Board as follows:

•

We believe that the employees of the organization
are equipped with proper office tools to enable them
to do their work and that this is supported by equally
state of the art communal equipments. We plan to
upgrade some of the equipment in the new offices.

•

In 2013, we invested in our people through training,
writing, presentation skills, time management and
conflict management.

We believe that we work with both the TBCSA and
TOMSA Boards. Throughout the year, we ensure that the
following are achieved: -

These are some of the highlights of the training the staff
received. We will continue to make similar investments
in 2014, with special focus on writing, presentation skills
and in coaching some of the staff members who are in
supervisory positions.

•

Board meetings takes place as per agreed dates
and at decent venues, with decent refreshments
and meals

CONCLUSION

•

That Board documents are of high standard, bound
and dispatched timeously

•

That we implement Board resolutions and include
them in our quarterly reports

•

We struggled with the quality of minutes for the
Board discussions in 2013 and we hope that with the
addition of a Content Development staff member,
this will cease to be a problem in 2014.

We work well with our individual members, member
associations, the Board, SA Tourism and the National
Department of Tourism. We think that we have carved
a niche for ourselves and that we are recognized for the
role that we play in the sector.

Board Management and Administration

General Office Management
Increased staff capacity with a Bookkeeper and
Content Development staff members joining the
organization to help ease the pressure due to the
increased work load

•

Completing the acquisition of own premises. We are
currently refurbishing the new offices with the plan
of moving in April/May 2014. We think that this will
be a great investment in the medium to long term
for the TBCSA and will also contribute towards its
increased profiling in the public space.

•

We struggled with securing a knowledgeable and
competent staff member in the Strategic Projects/
Business Development portfolio and we hope that
we will have a permanent solution in the New Year

We have become more visible to the industry at large
and to Government and most importantly the media.
We are much closer to our members especially the
associations and we work together instead of competing
with each other. We have the key leaders in our sector
forming part of the Management Board thus helping to
direct the programmes and activities of the organization.
We have become the association of associations, with
approximately 16 sectoral associations affiliated to the
TBCSA.

Ms. Mmatšatši Ramawela
Chief Executive Officer
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•

The TBCSA has over the years become an organization
that’s highly regarded within and outside the sector.

“The TBCSA has over the years become an organization that’s highly regarded
within and outside the sector. We work well with our individual members, member
associations, the Board, SA Tourism and the National Department of Tourism.”

PROGRESS REPORT: 10 MACRO-ECONOMIC PRIORITIES
In line with the TBCSA’s mandate to lobby the public sector, facilitate key industry programmes,
monitor and influence developments in the macro-economic environment which impact on the
industry, ten macro-economic factors were prioritised by the Board. Below is an update of overall
progress achieved in the period under review.
Airlift and Air Access

Land and Infrastructure Development
Land and Infrastructure developments play a significant
role in the growth and development of the travel and
tourism industry in South Africa. The industry has also
been affected by the process of land claims – particularly
in areas where tourism activity was well established.
Considering the history of our country, this is a sensitive
matter which needs to be carefully handled especially
considering the economic benefits of tourism activities in
the affected areas. The TBCSA’s position on this matter
is for the affected parties to engage and ensure a speedy
resolution which will ensure the sustainability of tourism
activity.

Travel and Tourism Service Excellence
Ahead of the 2010 Soccer World Cup, TBCSA collaborated
with the National Department of Tourism to conduct
an audit of service levels in the industry with a view to
develop a strategy and approach to improve service levels
in the industry.
Since then the Department have embarked on two new
initiatives:
• The Journey to Excellence (J2SE) programme, which
aims to work closely with industry based in specific
rural areas to improve skills levels. In 2013, Upington
was identified as a suitable area to run a pilot for
this programme and service workshops are being
conducted with the trade in the area. The pilot will
be concluded in 2014, wherein the programme will
be handed over to the Province to continue with the
implementation.

13

We have also seen a number of developments in
the domestic airline industry. Since the industry is
deregulated, airlines will be licensed to operate on
condition that they satisfy specific legal requirements
and we have already noted reports of two new airlines
seeking to enter the market to fill the void left by 1Time.
We will continue to monitor developments further to see
how this situation will unfold in the new financial year.

The state of our roads, inconsistencies in provincial
transport regulations, the introduction of AARTO, the
ENATIS system and the implementation of the userpay system (eTolls) in the Gauteng province are some
of the key issues which have dominated our industry
engagements in 2013. Led by our member associations
SAVRALA and SATSA the industry is represented in a
number of forums within BUSA (Business Unity South
Africa) and regularly engages with the Department of
Transport on these matters.
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There have been a number of developments relating to
issues of airlift and air access in the industry. A major
development was the announcement of plans to review
the country’s 2006 Airlift Strategy. This process is being
led by the Department of Tourism and through member
associations BARSA and AASA the private sector is actively
involved in this review process.

PROGRESS REPORT: 10 MACRO-ECONOMIC PRIORITIES
• A Tourism Service Excellence standard – SANS
1197:2012 – was developed in collaborations with the
SA Bureau of Standards (SABS) to guide businesses in
the tourism value chain on how to apply their product
offering to agreed-upon practices and standards
which will lead to a positive tourism experience. The
standard is available for sale on the SABS website.

(CONTINUED)

Safety and Security

When it comes to safety and security for tourists and
the travel trade, the private sector is leading the course
through the Tourism Safety Initiative.
TSI was first initiated by our member association, SATSA.
It has since been decided in September 2013 that the
project be adopted by the TBCSA and expanded further
into a broad industry programme. In accordance with the
Board resolution of 5th December 2013, we have now
agreed to take forward the work of the TSI as follows:• To develop a three-year business plan and strategy
- needs analysis initiative is under way. We have
contracted outside experts to assist in conducting the
Needs Analysis and to compile the business plan for
presentation at the February 2014 Board meeting

Southern Sun Elangeni Daruma
Responsible Tourism
TBCSA members, FTT, NAA-SA and FEDHASA have
been leading the private sector’s activities relating to
responsible tourism.

• To use the objectives and goals of the business plan
to recruit and contract service providers to assist in
delivering on the specific aspects of the TSI project
We expect to commence with added services of the
TSI in March 2014. In the meantime, the current
service provider will continue to field calls from the
TSI call centre line, record and analyse incidences of
crime in the industry.

Annual Report 2013
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Though the Sustainable Tourism Partnership Program,
the Imvelo Awards and other programmes run by FTT
the private sector has been largely sensitized on the
need to embrace the concept of a ‘green economy’,
universal accessibility, exploring ways to apply responsible
tourism principles, reduce carbon emissions and ensure
sustainability in their business operations.
In 2010, the TBCSA and several of our member
associations and business members pledged their
support for The Child Protection Code (“The Code”) an
international industry-driven initiative aimed at raising
awareness and providing the industry with tools to
prevent the commercial sexual exploitation of children.
This initiative is locally led by TBCSA member, FTT and has
grown in leaps and bounds to include regional support.

TOMSA 14th year anniversary

PROGRESS REPORT: 10 MACRO-ECONOMIC PRIORITIES

These include:
• Support and participation in the annual National
Tourism Career Expo hosted by the National
Department of Tourism
• Support for the NDT’s Tourism Month activities such
as the Tourism Lecture and Student Seminars
• Continuous engagement and collaboration with our
sectoral education and training agency, CATHSSETA
Member associations such as FEDHASA, AHI and ASATA
are also actively involved in various industry initiatives
related to skills and human resources development.

The Tourism Business Index is a programme through
which we are addressing the industry’s concerns about
the ‘lack’ of reliable statistics in our industry – particularly
when it comes to business performance. TBI was first
launched in 2010 and stands out as a key programme for
the trade. Although there is much work to be done in
this area especially when it comes to ensuring that the
industry has consistent and reliable data, we struggled to
get going on some of the major undertakings in our plans.
In 2013, our focus was concentrated on improving and
growing industry’s support for the project.
This year we sadly parted ways with First National Bank,
who were the initial financial sponsors of the TBI and are
now going to work on securing a new partner/sponsor
in the New Year. We are not discouraged by this as
we believe that the TBI has and is still going to make a
huge contribution in terms of monitoring and recording
business performance within the industry – like it is done
in the other economic sectors.
We still need to resolve the issue of tourist arrival statistics
with SA Tourism and government through the NDT, the
Department of Home Affairs and StatsSA. We have tried to
get this matter to move forward in 2013 but we remain far
apart as private and public sector. We however have agreed
at the Board meeting of 5th December 2013 to press
ahead with the establishment of a Tourism Performance
Dashboard.
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In 2009, the TBCSA introduced a concept known as the
Career Guidance Workshops in collaboration with several
of our member associations. These workshops targeted
students at a tertiary level who were already studying
towards a travel and tourism related qualification. The
main objective was to inspire these students and share
information about the various career opportunities
available in the industry. Internal capacity challenges have
forced us to scale down our activations when it comes to
this project however we have continued to be involved
and collaborate with our industry stakeholder in other
industry platforms focussed on skills and human resource
development.

Knowledge Management and Market Intelligence

Annual Report 2013

Skills and Human Resources Development

PROGRESS REPORT: 10 MACRO-ECONOMIC PRIORITIES
Transformation and Empowerment
Historically, issues of transformation and empowerment
have been largely focussed on race and adherence to
the Tourism BEE Charter. However, 2013 proved to a
watershed year for the industry the TBCSA and the
National Department of Tourism collaborated to host
an event celebrating the contribution and achievements
of women in the travel and tourism industry. We look
forward to strengthening this collaboration so this can
grow into an annual event.
Investment Promotion

(CONTINUED)

We convened and hosted the 7th Hotel Investment
Conference Africa on 9th and 10th May 2013. This was
the final year in which the conference was hosted in
Durban and in collaboration with the KwaZulu-Natal
Department of Economic Development and Tourism and
its agencies – Trade and Investment KZN and Tourism
KZN. We were able to raise enough funds to pay for all
the conference expenses and remain with a surplus of
approximately R1 million. A detailed report on HICA is
available on page 26.
Looking ahead into the future, we have entered into
partnership a USA based events company called Afrhic
Events to prepare and host the 8th HICA conference at
The Maslow hotel on 14th to 16th September 2014. We
are hoping to raise increased sponsorship and support
from leading local, regional and international brands from
within the tourism and hospitality sector.

Destination Marketing
Our work in pursuing this important aspect of our
industry is covered in three ways – through our
contribution to SA Tourism’s funding by the TOMSA
levies; the UK Sales Conversion project and through
our broad collaboration in our capacity as the VOICE of
the private sector.

Annual Report 2013
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• Funding SAT through TOMSA Levies. For the three
quarters of 2013 starting from January to October,
we have transferred R 78 346 770 to SA Tourism.
The last quarter payments will be transferred to
them late January to early February 2014. This is
in line with our MOU with them. Our contribution
to SA Tourism accounts for between 10% to 12% of
their budget.
• UK Sales Conversion Project. Apart from their
obligations in respect of the TOMSA MOU, the UK
Sales Conversion project is another reason why
our relationship with SA Tourism has not improved
to the levels that we desired or were possible

considering that we have new management within
that agency. Except for some small improvements
in recent months, we have battled since August
2012 to get SA Tourism’s co-operation realising the
objectives of the project. Its pleasing to note that
the board has finally made a decision to conclude
the project and to commit to work closely with SA
Tourism in increasing UK tourist arrivals into the
country considering that we have been recording
some reduction in several months in 2013
• Broad Collaboration with SA Tourism. We are
pleased with the establishment of the Marketing
Forum to work closely with SA Tourism on their
marketing and promotions activities. This was
an initiative of the TBCSA and so far the forum
has met two times to discuss Indaba 2014 and
its future and the Domestic Tourism Promotion
campaign. We believe that this is another initiative
bringing the TBCSA and private sector closer to SA
Tourism and the NDT.

FINANCE, HR & ADMINISTRATION REPORT

Although the country continues to experience economic
challenges, we are pleased to report that TBCSA and
TOMSA managed to achieve a positive performance and
the organisation’s finances continued to be in a good
state throughout the year in review.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
The organisation received unqualified audits as
we continued to focus on improving our financial
management systems in 2013, however, the issue of
obtaining tax exemption from the SA Revenue Services
(SARS) – for both TBCSA and TOMSA - is yet to be
concluded.
From a TBCSA membership perspective, we are happy
to report that by the end of the financial year, 97%
of membership fees were paid in full. Moreover, the
organisation also gained six new members. A decision was
taken at our Annual General Meeting, to retain the current
membership fee structure for the 2014 financial year.

TOMSA also continued to show
good progress in the year under
review.
Our sales and marketing activities, as well as
improvements in the levy collection administration
systems have resulted in collections reaching an all time
high since the inception of TOMSA.

Tilly Heydenreich, Chief Financial Officer

The total levies collected for the 2013 financial year
reached R 115 894 848 against R 102 831 670 collected in
the same period in 2012 Once again, the accommodation
sector stood out as the biggest contributor, accounting for
76% of the total levies collected.
Furthermore, from a TOMSA perspective, we continue
to work closely with our counterparts at South African
Tourism to ensure delivery of the benefits promised in the
Memorandum of Understanding signed in 2012. Through
our member relations, we will keep negotiating for more
benefits and to find other ways to offer levy collectors
better value for their constant support of TOMSA and
ultimately the destination.

OFFICE ADMINISTRATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES
The 2013 financial year was again a busy year for the organization. We continue to ensure that our personnel are
motivated and work hard to deliver on the mandate of the organization. This is a challenge for the organisation
of our size where all personnel need to be highly effective and work on multiple projects and activities.

CONCLUSION
Overall we are pleased with the progress made in 2013 and remain optimistic that global economic conditions
will improve in the New Year, as we need the business of travel and tourism to flourish. However, ensuring
optimal efficiencies in our internal systems – particularly in relation to the collection of TOMSA levies - will
remain a top priority for us.
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A significant development this year was the decision to relocate the office. We have since purchased an office
building and plan to alter the building’s design to suit our organisational needs. We expect to move into the new
office building by the second half of 2014.

MEMBER RELATIONS REPORT

The year under review began with us focussing
our attention to one of the most important issues
affecting the entire business community in the
country – debating the cost of electricity. Alongside
other business formations, TBCSA represented the
travel and tourism industry’s perspective during
public hearings on the Eskom’s proposed tariff
increase.
This was to be the beginning of an exciting but
sometimes challenging year.

TBCSA MEMBER RELATIONS
2013 has been a good year for member relations. Not
only did we manage to retain our membership based, but
we were also able to recruit five new organisations under
the TBCSA umbrella.
They are: the Forever Resorts Group, Mad-Meerkat
Tours, the Board of Airline Representative of South Africa
(BARSA) and the Exhibition Association of Southern
Africa (EXSA) and the Hiking Organisation of South Africa
(HOSA). HOSA joined the TBCSA under our new member
category which is aimed at providing access to TBCSA for
smaller role-players in the industry.

Ms. Boitumelo Moleleki, Member Relations Manager

b.

	The 17th Annual General Meeting for the TBCSA
and TOMSA took place on the 6th of August. The
meeting was lead by the TBCSA Board Chairman,
with the support of the CEO.
Key highlights from the AGM are as follows:

To date, TBCSA boasts a total of 52 members, inclusive
of 18 national sector associations which represent
the interests of business in the industry. Moreover we
continue to field member-related enquiries on a regular
basis, which for us is reflective of the strength of the
TBCSA profile in the market place. As a principle, we
encourage all relevant businesses – particularly those
operating at an SMME level - to affiliate with our sector
associations to ensure that their individual needs are
catered for at a micro-economic level.

MEMBER ENGAGEMENT

Annual Report 2013
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a.

CEO’s FORUM

	As a sub-committee of the TBCSA Board, the
CEOs Forum has been very active. Due to the
growth in members, the Forum welcomed a
few new faces and a wide variety of issues were
addressed. These ranged from discussions on
provincial regulations on liquor licensing, the
implementation of the National Tourism Sector
Strategy (NTSS), the future of industry trade shows
and issues of industry.

2013 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

c.

•

The successful hosting of the inaugural South
African Travel and Tourism Industry Conference
(SATTIC)

•

The successful hosting of the annual Hotel
Investment Conference (HICA)

•

The growing industry measure performance
tool – Tourism Business Index (TBI)

•

The increased TBCSA membership base
consisting of new industry associations

FACE TO FACE MEMBER MEETINGS

	Another critical component of our member
engagement activities was the face to face member
meetings we embarked upon. Our focus was mainly
with member associations and corporate members
who tend to be less visible in mainstream industry
events and whom we do not get to interact with
a lot. These meetings are proving to be invaluable
for us in terms of deepening our understanding of
member issues and the environment wherein our
members operate.

MEMBER RELATIONS REPORT
KEY INDUSTRY EVENTS AND STRATEGIC PROJECTS

TOURISM INDABA

	Tourism Indaba is a key event in our travel
and tourism industry calendar. Each year, we
endeavour to create a TBCSA ‘village’ as part of
our participation at the annual Tourism Indaba
and 2013 was no exception. We secured our
place in the ICC, which is primarily where most of
the business operators in the sector are usually
located and shared our stand with member
associations FEDHASA and NAA-SA.
	The primary reason for our presence at Indaba
is to be within easy reach of our members and
key stakeholders. Being at Indaba also provides
the opportunity to profile the organisation and
promote TOMSA. In this regard, we chose to
mark the initiative’s 14th anniversary and invited
members and levy collectors to celebrate with us
at our stand.
ii.	CELEBRATING WOMEN IN THE TRAVEL AND
TOURISM INDUSTRY
	We also embarked on a new initiative in the
year under review, to recognise the contribution
and role women play in the industry as part
of prioritising issues related to empowerment
and transformation in our industry. The event
was hosted in partnership with the National
Department of Tourism and invited female
professionals in the industry to celebrate and
engage on the challenges women face in the
tourism environment.

iii.

HICA 2013

	An event which seems to grow in strength
and support each year is the annual Hotel
Investment Conference Africa – HICA. The
project is linked to the TBCSA’s overall drive to
lead the call for greater levels of investment
in the hotel and broader hospitality sector –
not only in South Africa but for the rest of the
African continent.
	The event continues to attract leading experts
in the field of hospitality, investment and the
broader tourism industry and each year we make
sure that our members have the opportunity to
participate in this important event.
iv.

THE SUMMIT 2013

	Lastly, we hosting our second annual
South African Travel and Tourism Industry
Conference (SATTIC) under a new banner in
2013 – that of The South Africa Travel and
Tourism Industry Summit – The Summit. The
Summit was held in alongside our member
associations ASATA, SAVRALA, SATSA,
FEDHASA and the NAA-SA in partnership with
the Gauteng Tourism Agency. The meeting
came up with a number of resolutions
and we look forward to engaging further
with members and key stakeholders on
these resolutions and explore how best to
implement them in the New Year.

CONCLUSION
During this period under review, the industry
experienced drawbacks and significant
achievements were accomplished. TBCSA will
continue to lobby and facilitate programmes
which will enable an environment in which
business of all sizes can thrive, expand and be
competitive. We thank TBCSA members and
Board members for their support and guidance
throughout the year.
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i.

	Deputy Minister of Tourism, Ms Thokozile
Xasa, addressed the audience and outlined
the Department’s plans to create support
programmes for women entrepreneurs.
The event also included entertainment and
pampering sessions for the ladies to enjoy.
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Based on the ten macro-economic priorities identified
by our Board in 2009, we continue to facilitate and
activate a number of programmes in 2013. Below is
an outline of the strategic programmes where we
participated in as an organisation or facilitated in
partnership with other stakeholders.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS REPORT

“There is only one thing in the world worse than being
talked about and that is not being talked about” says
Irish author and poet Oscar Wilde.
Striking a healthy balance between the two is a delicate
task which continued to keep us on our toes in the year
under review.

We certainly had enough activity in the year to
ensure that the TBCSA brand is not far from key industry
developments which are in line with our mandate
and overall Board strategy. The portfolio was further
strengthened by the appointment of an additional
resource which means that the portfolio now comprises
of two main components – Corporate Communications
and Content Development.
Below is an outline of the year’s key highlights from a
Corporate Communications and Content Development
perspective:

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

Websites and Social Media

Engagement with our members is the cornerstone of
our corporate communications activities and through
our monthly e-newsletters and web-portals we have
consistently ensured that we involve, inform and engage
with members on a regular basis.

Online platforms remain our most valuable
communications tools and we view these websites as the
public’s window into the work of the organisation.

Publications
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tourism private sector to delve deeper into the industry
issues and to provide a business perspective and insight
into these matters. We are excited by the prospect of
extending this platform further in 2014.

Member Communication

Having a dedicated resource looking after our e-mail
and newsletter distribution has certainly helped us to
maintain the momentum in our member communication
and as the year draws to a close, we’ve seen a definite
improvement in member responses to our mailers. All our
communication also extends to our TOMSA levy collectors
and industry stakeholders.
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Ms Kagiso Mosue, Corporate Communications
Manager

Amongst the various promotional collateral developed,
the Tourism Business Africa digital magazine is a definite
highlight for us. To date five editions of the magazine
have been published, with the January/February edition
to be published at the beginning of the new financial
year.
The idea behind this publication is not to add to the
litter of established publications which are already in the
market but rather to provide a platform for the travel and

Our Content Development Officer also oversees the
management of all four of our websites – www.tbcsa.travel;
www.tomsa.co.za ; www.sattic.co.za and www.hica.co.za which have
all continued to function without any serious technical
glitches. We strive to ensure that we provide content
which is relevant, reliable in all our web platforms.
We have also ventured further into the virtual world
by embracing the social media space. TBCSA, TOMSA
and HICA all currently feature on social networking
platforms such as FACEBOOK, TWITTER and LinkedIn.
What makes these platforms attractive for us is their
interactive nature which allows us to engage directly
with our various target audiences and gather their views
on industry issues.

CORPORATE BRANDING
Brand Repositioning
Ensuring that the TBCSA and our strategic project brands
are well positioned in the market was a key focus area
for us in the year under review. As a follow up to our

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS REPORT
member survey on the proposal to change the TBCSA
brand name, we undertook a study to solicit stakeholder
views on the matter. On the whole there seems to be
general support for a change in the brand name and this
matter will be taken forward by the Board in the next
financial year. The study also revealed insightful views
on how our stakeholders perceive the TBCSA brand
and its work, with many calling for closer collaboration
and citing the Tourism Business Index as a valuable
information tool.
Slight adjustments were also made to the TOMSA
logo, changing the acronym from Tourism Marketing
South Africa to Tourism Levy South Africa in a bid to
address the persisting misconceptions about TOMSA
being a tourism marketing agency. More work still lies
ahead for us to generate awareness about TOMSA and
its role as a levy collected for destination marketing
purposes.
Protection of IP

Apart from the stakeholder survey we conducted,
we also engaged our stakeholders extensively
in the year under review. Amongst the various
industry presentations the TBCSA gave the
following stand out as highlights:
• TBCSA’s presentation to the National Energy
Regulator (NERSA) on ESKOM’s proposed
electricity tariff increase in January 2013;
• TBCSA’s presentation to the Local Government
Tourism Conference held in February 2013;
• TBCSA’s presentation to Parliament’s Portfolio
Committee on the National Development Plan
• TBCSAs’s presentation to the National Tourism
Stakeholder Forum (NTSF) on the private sector’s
implementation of the National Tourism Sector
Strategy (NTSS) in October.

In partnership with the Department of Tourism, a total of
three Tourism Leadership Dialogues were hosted and we
have represented the private sector in various forums and
industry events.

CEO Interview at The Summit 2013
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As part of our internal governance processes, we continue
to ensure that all our brand properties are properly
registered as trademarks within the confines of the law.
The Tourism Business Index and SATTIC are in the process
of being registered as TBCSA trademarks.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS REPORT

(CONTINUED)

MEDIA RELATIONS
TBCSA’s strategic projects play a significant role in our
bid to profile the work of the organisation and on the
whole we are pleased to note the media’s positive
response. Although the level of media coverage varies
from time to time, the Tourism Business Index (TBI)
was by far the biggest generator of media coverage
in 2013, followed by our hosting of the annual Hotel
Investment Conference and The Summit.
For TBI we adopted a new approach of engaging key
media prior to publishing the report. This ensures
that media can anticipate and plan ahead of its

release. For HICA our approach was slightly different
as it involved both TV and radio. We continued our
partnership with the business channel CNBC Africa,
but also partnered with SABC’s SA FM to host an
outside broadcast onsite.
In another highlight which links back to our
member communication and engagement is our
partnership with trade publication Tourism Update
to solicit the industry’s views on the future of trade
shows and exhibitions through a successful webinar
platform.

PR and PROMOTIONS
Events are another pillar to our media engagement, PR
and promotional activities and in the year under review
we added two new components to our annual activities.
These were in the form of a celebration at Indaba,
marking TOMSA’s 14th year anniversary. Not only did we
host a celebratory event at our exhibition stand, but we
also used the trade show’s main communication platform
to raise the trade’s awareness about the occasion.
HICA 2013 and the Summit also put the TBCSA brand in
the spotlight. To promote HICA, we ran radio campaign on
Talk Radio 702 and to mark Women’s Month we hosted

the inaugural Women in Travel and Tourism event in
recognition of the role women play in the industry.

CONCLUSION
In closing, 2013 has been another busy year. We have
worked hard to use the various communications tools and
platforms available to raise the general level of awareness
of the TBCSA and its work. There are areas wherein we
were successful and others where we have learnt some
lessons. Looking ahead into the New Year our ambition
remains to maintain a consistent, positive profiling of
the TBCSA as the voice of the travel and tourism private
sector.
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“We have also ventured further into the virtual world by embracing the
social media space. TBCSA, TOMSA and HICA all currently feature on social
networking platforms such as FACEBOOK, TWITTER and LinkedIn.”

To deliver on the Boardidentified macro-economic
factors through collaboration
and effective leveraging

To mainstream the travel and
tourism sector in the media
and the public area

2. Strategic Projects
Management

3. CORPORATE
COMMUNICATIONS
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To recruit, engage, support,
maintain and develop a travel
and tourism membership
community

1. TBCSA & TOMSA
MEMBER RELATIONS
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BROAD STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

PORTFOLIO

•
•
•
•
•

Corporate Communications
Corporate Branding
Media Relations
Stakeholder Relations
Publicity & Promotions

SUPPORT

2.4 Marketing & Promotions

2.3 Stakeholder Relations

2.2 Continue developing the
Knowledge and Intelligence
information centre

2.1 Implement active projects

• Administration &
Communication

• Stakeholder Management

• Marketing & Promotion

• Sales

• Membership Retention

PILLARS

STRATEGIC DELIVERY AREAS

•
•
•
•
•
•

Produce company publications & stationery
Oversee brand management and repositioning
Oversee media relations management
Monitor & Report on media coverage
Represent the organisation in various industry structures
Activate promotional campaigns for TBCSA and its
project brands

• Ensure the successful hosting of HICA and SATTIC in
2013 and collaboration on Tourism Safety Initiative
• Position TBCSA as an information hub through the
production of position papers and TBI publications
• Establish and maintain good relationships with current
and potential stakeholders
• Ensure that all projects and brands receive media
attention

• Member Engagement: Schedule member contact
meetings and networking sessions
• Levy Collector Engagement: Schedule levy collector
contact and engagement
• Activate the TOMSA levy collector recruitment drive
• Produce promotional material for TBCSA & TOMSA
• Participate in industry events & workshops to profile
TBCSA & TOMSA
• Ensure compliance to TOMSA MOU
• Maintain positive relationships with key stakeholders
• Database management
• Information sharing

PLANNED ACTIVITIES

Quarterly

Quarter 1
Quarter 1
Monthly
Monthly
Quarterly

Monthly
Quarterly, as per
project requirements

Quarterly

Quarter 3

Quarter 2 and 3

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarter 2

Quarter 1

Monthly

Monthly

TIMELINE

Below is an outline of activities to be undertaken in the 2014 financial year. This report provides a framework on how the organisation will deliver on its goals in
the 2014 fiscal year.

2014 CONSOLIDATED ACTIVITY PLAN
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5.CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE (Finance,
Human Resources &
Administration)

4. CONTENT
MANAGEMENT
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To ensure that the financial
standing of the organisation
and ensure proper systems
are in place

• Produce financial statements for TBCSA & TOMSA
• Present auditors with financial statements and audit
file
• Review existing financial policies & procedures
• Manage supplier database
• Ensure sound financial standing for TBCSA and TOMSA
• HR Administration
• Recruitment & Selection
• Training & Development
• Labour Relations
• Corporate Governance
• Administration Management
• Office management
• Corporate Governance
• Projects & Events Support

• Financial Accounting

• Office Administration

• Human Resources

• Corporate Governance

• TBCSA member invoicing
• Ensure recording and monitoring of TBCSA financial
information
• Ensure recording and monitoring of TOMSA financial
information
• Strengthening levy collector system
• Ensure optimized TOMSA debt management system
• Produce annual budgets for TBCSA and TOMSA

• Oversee Board meeting preparations
• Oversee Board meeting content capturing
• Produce internal, member and levy collector
newsletters
• Oversee the organisation’s database management
• Oversee website management
• Manage social media platforms
• Provide logistical supports for strategic projects &
events

• Managerial Accounting

• Strategic Projects Support

• PR Content Development

• Board Administration

Quarterly3
Quarterly
Monthly
Monthly
Where required
Quarterly
Where required
Bi- Annual
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Monthly

Quarterly
Quarter 1

Monthly
Monthly
Quarterly

Monthly

Quarter 4
Monthly

Per project
requirements

Monthly
Monthly

Quarterly
Monthly
Quarterly

2014 CONSOLIDATED ACTIVITY PLAN
(CONTINUED)
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To ensure the TBCSA and
TOMSA Boards are supported
in their work as directors and
that corporate governance
measures are in place

7. Executive Support
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To ensure the TBCSA and
TOMSA Boards are supported
in their work as directors and
that corporate governance
measures are in place

6. Board and Executive
Support

7.4 Office Support

7.3 Executive Support

7.2 Communication

7.1 Board Reporting

• Office Support

• Office Reception Management

• Board & Sub-Committee
Support

• Secretarial support to CEO

• Preparation and ensuring timeous delivery of Board
packs
• Ensure accurate record keeping of Board minutes and
activities
• Ensure timely communication to Board on meetings
and other relevant matters
• Providing executive support to CEO and Board
Chairman
• Switchboard & Reception management
• Management of office supplies

• Ensure that the CEOs instructions are carried out
professionally & timeously
• Manage the CEOs Diary
• Coordinate the CEO’s attendance to events, meetings
and conferences
• Coordinate and schedule of Board meetings
• Ensure content recording for all sub-committee
meetings
• Provide secretarial support for Board Chairmen
• Switchboard management
• Professional reception of visitors
• Management of all meeting rooms
• Ensure content recording and record-keeping for staff
meetings

Daily
Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Bi-monthly

Daily

Monthly

Monthly

2014 CONSOLIDATED ACTIVITY PLAN

HICA 2013

With every year of hosting the annual Hotel
Investment Conference Africa (HICA), we aim to raise
the bar in terms of delivering a valuable platform for
industry and business engagement - 2013 was no different.

The seventh annual HICA was held ahead of
Tourism Indaba in Durban, from the 8th to 10th May
at the Elangeni Hotel.
What makes HICA special for the TBCSA, is that it is
the first and possibly one of the few (if not the only)
conferences of its kind in the Continent’s hotel and
broader hospitality sector which is wholly owned
and driven by the private sector. This distinguishing
factor means that the conference is not a mere
‘talk shop’ but a place where one can connect
with like-minded individuals seeking new business
opportunities and also transact (or ‘seal the deal’)
onsite.
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Conference Programme and Speakers
HICA is platform which connects investors and
financiers, hoteliers, industry intermediaries with the
industry’s public sector leadership for frank dialogue,
networking and debate on the developmental
opportunities and challenges in the industry.
The relevance of the conference topics and our ability
to secure the right speakers and session facilitators are

key ingredients to our delivery of a quality event. We had
a total of sixty-seven (67) speakers coming from within
South Africa, the continent of Africa and overseas – from
the USA, UK, Europe and Middle East.
Amongst these were South Africa’s Minister of Tourism,
Marthinus van Schalkwyk and MECs of Economic
Development in South Africa’s key economic hubs of
KwaZulu-Natal (MEC Michael Mabuyakhulu), Gauteng (the
late MEC Nkosidipendule Kolisile) and the Western Cape
(MEC Alan Winde). The local, regional and international
business community was also well represented and it
was pleasing to host the WTTC (Wold Travel and Tourism
Council) Marketing Director, Mr. Geoffrey Breeze on one
of the conference panels.

Delegates Numbers
We struggled a bit with increasing our delegate numbers
in 2013. In the end, we managed to attract up to 280
delegates including speakers and sponsors. This was
a tough year to grow delegate numbers. We know
that since we moved the conference to Durban, we
lost delegates and sponsors hence the move back to
Johannesburg in 2014.

HICA 2013
Conference Networking
The opportunity to network is an important component
of the conference and beyond the standard networking
breaks, specific social events where hosted to encourage
networking in a less formal environment.
Prior to formal proceedings, we hosted a small cocktail
event – the HICA BizNetworking function – to welcome
delegates to the conference. The idea is to create a
platform for delegates to start engaging and establishing
their conference networks.
The BizNetworking event was followed by an official
welcome reception at the end of the first day’s
proceedings. This was a bigger social event, held outside
of the conference venue which included entertainment
and socialising based on the “mad hatter’ theme. Here
delegates could network in a more relaxed environment.
The conference also included an exhibition, where
a limited number of exhibitors including conference

sponsors could showcase their products and projects to
potential buyers. The space in the exhibition hall was set
up such that in between the conference breaks, delegates
could walk through the exhibition area and network
further.
The conference concluded with a formal sit-down
lunch, which once again provided an opportunity to
share contact details and set up meetings for further
engagement outside of the conference.

Media Coverage
We secured live and onsite broadcast of the conference
from SAFM, while on the other hand, continuing the
coverage with stations such as 702 and print media. We
also had live television coverage through SABC’s Morning
Live since they were in Durban to cover the Indaba trade
show.

Partnerships and Sponsors
As a sponsorship-driven event, we cannot emphasise the level of gratitude we feel for all the organisations who
have continued to support HICA over the years. In this year under review we continued our partnership with the
KwaZulu-Natal Province. In addition the Industrial Development Corporation and Joburg Tourism came on-board
as sponsors. We have maintained a close relationship with our associate supporters Pam Golding Hospitality and
appreciate their continued guidance and support for the conference.
Lastly, our gratitude also goes to SA Tourism for providing our delegates complimentary entry to Tourism Indaba
and our member organisations AVIS and Europcar for their support.

Conclusion
ahead to HICA 2014, we certainly want to continue to
ensure that HICA showcases more of the hotel investment
opportunities inside and beyond the borders of South
Africa.

Minister of Tourism, M van Schalkwyk

A McLachlan, Rezidor Hotels and J Demes, Pam Golding Hospitality in plenary
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For a lean team such as ours, hosting an event of this
magnitude successfully is a major achievement and we do
not take for granted the support we continue to receive
from the local, regional and international trade. Looking

TBI CONSOLIDATED REPORT 2013/14

Travel and tourism is possibly one of the toughest industries to measure given its sometimes
volatile nature as it is easily susceptible to short-term fluctuations. However, information is
power and in the year under review, the TBCSA continued to partner with crown member First
National Bank and business member Grant Thornton to publish quarterly TBCSA FNB Tourism
Business Index (TBI).
Simply put, TBI is a simple web-based which tracks
the performance of business in the travel and tourism
industry on a quarterly basis. The index is focused on
variables such as demand, revenue, profitability, capacity
utilisation, capacity changes, constraints to trade, positive
impacts on trade and employment. The index is based on
the normal realistic long-term average expected level of
trading for each quarter.
The index provides rapid information and has a particular
focus on areas not usually covered by quantitative
statistics. Similar to other business indices such as the
BER Business Confidence Index and the WTO Tourism
Barometer, the Tourism Business Index conforms to
the international OECD (Organisation for Economic
Development and Cooperation) standards and guidelines
for business tendency surveys.

“Surveys of this type provide
information that is invaluable to
the respondents themselves, and
to economic policy makers and
analysts.”
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Methodology
TBI comprises of three composite weighted indices for
the overall industry, and two sub-sectors categorised as
‘accommodation’ and ‘other tourism businesses’. The
accommodation sector, which was by far the most active
sector in terms of the level of information contribution,
comprises of the different types of accommodation
establishments available from hotels to guest-houses.
‘Other tourism businesses’ is a category which includes
responses from tour operators, coach operators, vehicle
rental companies, airlines, travel agents, retail outlets,

forex traders, conference venues and attractions.
Unfortunately, responses from the transport sector are
still too few to develop a stand-alone sub-category at this
stage.
The survey tracks the actual and expected level business
performance on a quarterly basis using statistical
measures such as ‘normal’ and the ‘balance statistic’.

Definition:
Normal is the level of acceptable businesses
performance in line with the realistic long term
average performance you would hope to achieve,
or the long term average historical performance
experienced. Normal is then calibrated to an index
of 100. When the index shows Performance or
Prospects at higher than 100, this indicates better
than normal performance while, below 100 indicates
worse than normal performance

Definition:
The Balance Statistic: Results from qualitative
questions are provided in the form of a “balance”
statistic. This is the difference between the
percentages of positive and negative responses.
A balance for each question is calculated by
deducting the percentage of negative replies from
the percentage of positive answers given to each
question. The final value is a single figure, with a
minus representing an overall negative outlook or
performance and a positive figure an overall positive
outlook or performance.
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How did the local Travel and Tourism Trade fare in 2013?
The Tourism Industry’s Actual Past and Expected Future Performance Indices
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The industry consolidated the year with a solid
performance in 2013, in which only one quarter, Q2
experienced marginally below normal performance
at and index of 98. Trade expectations for the first
quarter of 2014 remain positive at an index of 111,3
confirming that the industry remains confident
looking ahead into the New Year.
Still on prospects for 2014, on balance the
accommodation respondents have a negative
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outlook (-22,4%) which continues the pessimistic
expectation shown in the prior editions. In fact the
accommodation sector has only seen one quarter
(1st Q 2013) with a positive outlook for the next
year, since the inception of the index. So while
trading conditions have improved to normal levels
since late 2012, longer term confidence has not
returned. Other Tourism Businesses are on balance
significantly more positive with+28,4% outlook for
the next year.

Factors Affecting Business Conditions
With regard to the performance of the TBI, the report
also considers both positive and negative factors which
possibly have an impact on the performance of the
industry.

• Competitor market behaviour continues to be cited
quite frequently as one of the major negative factors
affecting business performance for the Other Tourism
Businesses (31%).

Negative impacts highlighted in the last quarter of the
year included:

Other notable contributing influences mentioned in
relation to Other Tourism Businesses (40%) include the
impact of the increase in the price of fuel, motor industry
strikes affecting delivery time, supplier incompetence, lack
of marketing, poor road infrastructure, political influences
as well as the impact of Nelson Mandela’s death.

• Insufficient Overseas Leisure Demand: In addition
to this, a fair amount of respondents cite insufficient
overseas leisure demand (30%) as negatively
impacting business performance.

Positive impacts highlighted in the last quarter of the year
included:
• A weak exchange rate was cited as a significant
positive contributing factor for both the
Accommodation Sector and Other Tourism
Businesses.
• Positive influences during Q4 include business
development and/or improvement, increased
marketing efforts and December holidays
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• Cost of Labour: The cost of labour continues to
feature as a growing concern with an average of 24%
of all Accommodation Business respondents (from
inception of the index to date) indicating it as an
impediment to business performance.

Annual Report 2013

• Cost of Inputs: For the 6th consecutive quarter, cost
of inputs remains the most cited negative contributing
factor or business performance for Accommodation
Businesses (56%).
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TBI Summary – 2011 - 2014
Overall
Actual

2011

2012

2013

2014

Accommodation

Forecast

Actual

Forecast

Other
Actual

Forecast

1st Quarter

79.6

89.1

85.3

85.5

75.1

91.9

2nd Quarter

74.5

94.1

67.8

94.0

79.6

94.1

3rd Quarter

70.0

81.0

67.7

73.9

71.8

86.4

4th Quarter

87.3

80.7

98.9

84.9

78.3

77.4

1st Quarter

101.9

82.2

92.2

85.8

109.3

79.4

2nd Quarter

88.2

93.2

89.9

79.8

86.9

103.5

3rd Quarter

101.0

99.8

98.1

89.6

103.3

107.6

4th Quarter

104.6

103.1

108.4

103.1

101.6

103.2

1st Quarter

110.8

102.5

120.9

107.8

103.1

98.4

2nd Quarter

98.2

103.8

101.7

103.4

95.4

104.2

3rd Quarter

116.1

97.0

110.8

95.5

120.0

98.1

4th Quarter

114.6

110.8

111.4

110.0

117.2

111.4

1st Quarter

111.3

107.3

114.4

Value of TBI as a performance measurement
tool
TBI provides the industry with a simple tool for shortterm forecasting. It is timeous and complements other
forecasting methods.
The information generated through this business tool can
be used for:
• Developing marketing strategies
• As a foundation for decision-making
• In strategic business planning
• In evaluating Annual Results
• In the preparation of budgets and forecasts
• To profile and prioritise the industry
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Looking ahead into the New Year, the challenge remains
to ensure consistent support and active participation of
the trade in the quarterly surveys. It is also critical that we
engage operators in the transport sector on how best we
can collaborate to develop a transport sub-category. We
also look forward to our engagement with our members,
the Tourism Enterprise Partnership (TEP) to evaluate the
feasibility of incorporating an SMME component into the
index.

TBI Media Roundtable

We thank our main sponsor for the index, First National
Bank for their continued support and Grant Thornton
for their hard-work in compiling the index report on a
quarterly basis. Most importantly, we want our members
and the broader travel and tourism trade who participate
in the quarterly surveys and contribute the information.
Your valuable support is helping to build a reliable and
accessible market intelligence and knowledge-base for
our industry.

THE SUMMIT 2013

The inaugural 2013 SUMMIT marked a mutually beneficial
collaboration between the TBCSA, (who convened the
SATTIC industry conference in 2012) and Gauteng Tourism
(who convened the Gauteng Tourism SUMMIT in 2011).

Acknowledging the significant contribution of travel and tourism to the South African economy, the 2013 South
African Travel and Tourism Summit (THE SUMMIT) set out to create the definitive National Dialogue Platform
to facilitate conversations and agree outcomes regarding issues and opportunities of National importance and
significance that are facing the sector.

Summit Programme
Convening the SUMMIT in 2013 intended to mark a
gear-shift in the sector, from STRATEGY to ACTION.

from the TBCSA’s association membership base to ensure
a nationally relevant agenda.

Working within the underlying strategic framework
provided by the national and provincial tourism sector
strategies, the SUMMIT focused on identifying the need
for active interventions and agreeing the action plans
to achieve the objectives identified and agreed by the
delegates.

The SUMMIT’s theme, “THE VALUE OF THE TRAVELLER”,
acknowledged the contribution of travel and tourism to
the national economy and committed to explore ways
in which South Africa can increase its global market
share by improving its competitiveness. The theme was
further extended to ‘see South Africa through the eyes
of the traveller’ with a heavy emphasis on ‘visitability’, a
concept coined in Melbourne, which attempts to make
the region more attractive to travellers by focusing
on their needs, which are most often consistent with
the needs of one’s own citizens. It was emphasised
throughout the SUMMIT that a visitor-friendly city region
has to first be a ‘liveable’ city for its citizens before it can
focus on ‘visitability’

TBCSA and GTA CEOs in conversation

Stage setting Summit 2013
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The development of the SUMMIT Programme was
informed by the industry. In the months leading up to
the SUMMIT round table stakeholder discussions were
convened throughout the value chain, in order to develop
the programme and the agenda for today. The input from
the stakeholder round-tables, which were conducted on
a regional (Gauteng) basis were supplemented by inputs

THE SUMMIT 2013

(CONTINUED)

Delegate attendance and interaction
The SUMMIT was deliberately inter-active in nature and substantial use was made of delegate voting in order to
reach consensus on priorities. This informed the development of the track action plans and the content of the
final plenary dialogue in which roles and responsibilities were to be allocated.
As part of the trial for the usage of the voting device, the following delegate base facts were established:

Country of origin:

EUROPE

REST OF
AFRICA

SOUTH
AFRICA
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ASIA/
AUSTRALASIA

SADC OTHER
THAN SA

THE SUMMIT 2013

Tourism value chain:

Media
10%
Consultant
10%

Age group:

Transport
6%

49 and over
28%

Product
owner
5%

40 – 49
32%
Other
14%

DMO
10%

Under 25
1%

Government
17%
Tour
Operator
12%
Hospitality
15%

26 – 39
39%

1% not specified

Province:

LIMPOPO

2%

NORTH
WEST

1%

GAUTENG

83%

NORTHERN
cape

1%

mpumalanga

83%

WESTERN
cape

5%

6% not specified
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KWAZULUnatal

THE SUMMIT 2013
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The Maslow Agreement
A key highlight of the event was the industry’s commitments to specific actions. By means of ‘closing the loop’
and ensuring that THE SUMMIT achieved the shift in gear from Strategy to Action, the SUMMIT’s co-hosts,
TBCSA CEO, Mmatsatsi Ramawela, and Gauteng Tourism CEO, Dawn Roberston, brought THE SUMMIT to a
close through a commitment to ‘make things happen’ by encouraging the delegates to commit to the MASLOW
AGREEMENT whereby the hosts, and each of the delegates, wrote their own personal commitments.

Delegate Commitments:
My company will

Be an ambassador

be sustainable. I won’t quit

for optimism to grow the tourism
industry

Continue

to support the local community in upliftment

Live the SA Brand

Treat each person, visitor or citizen with
respect. Friendliness. Encourage travel
among friends and family

Keep innovating

to further tourism growth. Keep learning. Keep inspiring

Champion rural route strategy
development in South Africa

Integrate Eastern Cape

through partnership with KZN and Western Cape for
domestic tourism

Promote

professionalism in tourism

Reignite

the experience economy and storytelling at Maropeng

To being a tourist in my own country

Assist in

plans of an integrated public transport system.
Move Gauteng forward

Let’s sell experiences,
not just a cheap hotel room

Tourism

has a serious shortage of skills. Skills and transformation

Show our tourists

our real lives, experiences and culture.
Bringing back the kasi voice and chucking
the vuvuzela !!!

Commitment to service excellence
Improved

community beneficiation in tourism

Improve!! Attitudes and service standards
amongst tourist guides – Nationally and front line staff

I commit

to covering more stories on travel and tourism

Report truthfully

about tourism in the various media

We will start
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a culture of storytelling in Greater Tzaneen for our
residents and visitors

Sell experiences

not just services or products!

Conclusion
The intention is to convene THE SUMMIT every year with the possibility of rotating the venue between various
South African Cities and Provinces but returning to Gauteng every second year. Negotiations regarding the host
city for the next SUMMIT have already started. The SUMMIT’s ongoing objective is to be acknowledged as the
definitive National Platform for debate, dialogue and decision making amongst the key thought leaders from
both the public and private sectors.
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Level of assurance			

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Management of Tourism Business Council of South Africa NPC
We have audited the financial statements of Tourism Business Council of South Africa NPC, as set out on pages 42 to
49, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatements.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe the audit evidence we have updated is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Tourism Business Council
of South Africa NPC as at 31 December 2013, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.
Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention the fact that the company applied in December 2003 to the South
African Revenue Services to obtain tax exemption status under section 10(1)(e) of the Income Tax Act. In the event of
the South African Revenue Services not giving exemption, and estimated liability of R9 841 147 (including penalties and
interest) will be incurred by the company. The financial statements at the moment do not include the recognition of the
South African Revenue Services liability (refer to note 7).
Supplementary information
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We draw your attention to the fact that the supplementary information set out in Annexure 1 does not form part of the
financial statements and is presented as additional information. We have not audited this information and accordingly do
not express an opinion thereon.
TENK LOUBSER & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants (S.A.)
Registered Auditors
Per: M.A. Oberholzer
Director
28 February 2014
Johannesburg
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Directors’ responsibilities and approval
The directors are required to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity
of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to
ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial
year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial
statements.				
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are
based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the Company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors
to meet these responsibilities, the Company sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or
loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.
These controls are monitored throughout the directors and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical
standards in ensuring the Company’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above
reproach. The focus of risk management in the Company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known
forms of risk across the Company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Company endeavours to minimise
it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.				
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.				
The directors have reviewed the Company’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2014 and, in the light of this
review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Company has or has access to adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the Company’s annual financial
statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the Company’s external auditors and their report is
presented on page 38.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 42 to 43, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the directors on 28 February 2014 and were signed on its behalf by:
			

______________________________________________

Director		

Director
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Directors’ report
The directors submit their report for the year ended 31 December 2013
1.	REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES
MAIN BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS
	There were no change in the nature of the Company’s business during the year under review. The Company
continues to be the “One Voice for Tourism” in South Africa.
	The operating results and state of affairs of the Company are fully set out in the attached annual financial
statements and do not in our opinion require and further comment.
2.

GOING CONCERN

	The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going
concern. The basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of
assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of
business.
3.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS		

	The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year.
4.

DIRECTORS
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The directors of the Company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:
Name

Nationality

Appointment / *** Resignation date

Bender, BJWA

Dutch

6 August 2013

***

Bowen, L

South African

3 November 2013

***

Coetzee, Z

South African

4 November 2013

Corcoran, M

Irish

1 March 2013

Crawford, J

South African

5 December 2013

De Vries, O

Dutch

Duvenage, WL

South African

Eyre, GK

British

Frost, DJ

South African

18 September 2013

Gannon, SE

British

6 August 2013

Hatjigiannakis, MN

South African

6 August 2013

Jordaan, FH

South African

Kata, RA

South African

Khoza, ERA

South African

Kitshoff, A

South African

28 February 2013

6 August 2013

***

***
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6.

Lee, JA

South African

6 August 2013

Lewis, MJ

Zimbabwean

31 January 2013

Mabena, JA

South African

22 February 2013

Msimang, M - Chairperson

South African

Muirhead, D

South African

Nyondo, WJ

South African

Phillips, G

South African

Ramawela, ME

South African

Ross, C

South African

Seif, JA

American

Siddo, S

Niger

Smith, LJF

British

Tait, J

South African

Tatalias, MJ

Zambia

30 June 2013

***

Ungersbock, CA

South African

15 November 2013

***

Venter, JJ

South African

6 August 2013

***

Von Aulock, MN

South African

1 September 2013

Wood, GI

British

31 August 2013

Zweigenthal, CJN

South African

***

16 November 2013

6 August 2013

***

AUDITORS								
Tenk Loubser & Associates will continue in office in accordance with the Companies Act.			
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7.	REGISTERED ADDRESS									
Leriba Lodge									
245 End Street									
Clubview									
0157									
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Figures in Rand

Notes

2013

2012

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

3

3,242,908

89,866

Trade and other receivables

4

2,265,184

1,656,268

Cash and cash equivalents

5

25,187,419

22,060,692

27,452,603

23,716,960

30,695,511

23,806,826

24,436,176

18,166,003

CURRENT ASSETS

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Retained surplus
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

8

5,447,460

4,943,758

Provisions

6

811,875

697,065

6,259,335

5,640,823

30,695,511

23,806,826

Total Equity and Liabilities

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Figures in Rand

Notes

Revenue

9

1,820,999

8,115,639

8,459,458

(7,778,102)

(8,196,325)

2,216,220

2,084,132

4,053,953

3,780,685

6,270,173

5,864,817

Other comprehensive income

-

-

Total comprehensive income

6,270,173

5,864,817

Administrative expenses

10

Operating suplus

42

2012
1,878,683

Other income
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2013

Investment revenue
Surplus for the year

11
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Retained
surplus

Figures in Rand
Balance at 01 January 2012

Total
equity

12,301,186

12,301,186

Surplus for the year

5,864,817

5,864,817

Total changes

5,864,817

5,864,817

18,166,003

18,166,003

Surplus for the year

6,270,173

6,270,173

Total changes

6,270,173

6,270,173

24,436,176

24,436,176

2013

2012

Changes in equity

Balance at 01 January 2013
Changes in equity

Balance at 31 December 2013

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Figures in Rand

Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1,074,580

Cash (used in) generated from operations

(227,743)

(696,522)

Cash generated from operations

13

2,259,856

378,058

Interest income

11

4,053,953

3,780,685

6,313,809

4,158,743

(3,190,082)

(42,149)

3,000

(340)

Net cash from investing activities

(3,187,082)

(42,489)

Total cash movement for the year

3,126,727

4,116,254

22,060,692

17,944,438

43

2,487,599

25,187,419

22,060,692
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Cash receipts from customers

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

3

Proceeds from / (loans to) financial assets

Cash at beginning of the year
Total cash at end of the year

5
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Accounting policies
1.	PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

from previous estimates, the change is accounted
for as a change in accounting estimate.

	The annual financial statements have been prepared 	The depreciation charge for each period is
recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
the carrying amount of another asset.
Standards, and the Companies Act of South Africa. The
annual financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except where otherwise indicated, 	The gain or loss arising from the derecognition
of an item of property, plant and equipment
and incorporate the principal policies set
is included in profit or loss when the item is
out below.
derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the
derecognition of an item of property, plant
	These accounting policies are consistant with the
and equipment is determined as the difference
previous period.					
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
							
the carrying amount of the item.
1.1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
		Property, plant and equipment is initially
measured at cost.			
		Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire
or construct an item of property, plant and
equipment and costs incurred subsequently
to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised.
		Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on the straight line basis over their expected
useful lives to their estimated residual value.
Depreciation on the property will commence on
occupation date.
		The useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment have been assessed as follows:
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		Property, plant and equipment is carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.
Item

Average useful life

Property

20 years (5%)

IT equipment

3 years (33%)

Office equipment

6.67 years (15%)

	The residual value, useful life and depreciation
method of each asset are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period. If the expectations differ

1.2 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 		

						
		Initial recognition and measurement
			Financial instruments carried on the balance
sheet include cash and bank balances,
receivables and trade creditors. The
particular recognition methods adopted are
disclosed in the individual policy statements
associated with each item.
			
Trade and other receivables
			Trade receivables are carried at anticipated
realisable value. A provision is made for
impairment of trade receivables based on
a review of all outstanding amounts at year
end. Bad debts are written off during the
year in which they are identified.
			
Trade and other payables
			Trade payables are initially measured at fair
value, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method.
			Cash and cash equivalents
			For the purposes of the cashflow
statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits with banks, and investments in
money market instruments.

TBCSA AFS
TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA NPC
(REGISTRATION NUMBER 2008/011486/08)
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Accounting policies
1.3 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
Provisions are recognised when:
~	the Company has a present obligation as a
result of a past event;
		
~	it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation;
			and
		
~	a reliable estimate can be made of the
obligation.

~	it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation;
			or
		
~	the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

1.5	REVENUE
			Membership subscription and renewals
of memberships are recognised in full
upon becoming a member or renewal of
membership, net of Value Added Taxes.

		Employee entitlement to annual leave and long
term service are recognised when they accrue to
			
employees.

		

			Income from management fees is based
A contingent liability is:
on 7% of collections made by Tourism
~	a possible obligation that arises from
Marketing South Africa and is recognised as
past events and whose existence will be
it accrues.
confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future
			Project income, consists of 4% to 15% of
events not wholly within the control of the
the project value as well as research and
entity: or
marketing done by the Company for the
~	a present obligation that arises from past
respective projects.
events but is not recognised because:
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Interest income is recognised as it accrues.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Figures in Rand
3.

2013

2012

2013
Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
Value

Property, plant and equipment
Cost /
Valuation
Property

3,180,953

-

3,180,953

Office Equipment

274,066

(243,199)

30,867

IT Equipment

211,712

(180,624)

31,088

3,666,731

(540 906)

3,242,908

Total

Cost /
Valuation

2012
Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
Value

Office Equipment

274,065

(233,890)

40,175

IT Equipment

213,024

(163,333)

49,691

Total

487,089

(397 223)

89,866

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2013
Opening
Balance
Property

4.

Depreciation

Total

3,180,953

-

-

3,180,953

Office equipment

40,175

-

-

(9,308)

30,867

IT equipment

49,691

9,129

-

(27,732)

31,088

89,866

3,190,082

-

(37,040)

3,242,908

2,019

24,205

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables
SARS

34,600
1,007,999

802,923

3,240

3,240

VAT

132,301

24,322

TOMSA - management fee receivable

820,642

582,638

Accrued interest

264,383

218,940

2,265,184

1,656,268

Deposits

46

Disposals

-

Doubtfull debts
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Additions

The carrying value of trade and other receivables reflects the approximate fair value at year end.

TBCSA AFS

(CONTINUED)

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA NPC
(REGISTRATION NUMBER 2008/011486/08)
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
Figures in Rand

2013

2012

RECONCILIATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES OF TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Opening balance

36,619

-

(34,600)

-

-

-

2,019

-

Cash on hand

1,500

1,500

Bank balances

25,185,919

22,059,192

25,187,419

22,060,692

Provision for impairment
Amounts written off as uncollectable
The creation and release of allowance for credit losses have been included in
operating expenses in the income statement.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of
each class of loan mentioned above. The entity does not hold any collateral as security.
5.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash and bank earns interest at floating rate based on a daily bank deposit rate.
6.

Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2013
Opening
Balance

Additions

Total

Staff incentives

360,736

107,675

468,411

Leave pay

336,329

7,135

343,464

697,065

114,810

811,875

Reconciliation of provisions - 2012
Opening
Balance

Total

Staff incentives

343,148

17,588

360,736

Leave pay

325,055

11,274

336,329

668,203

28,862

697,065

The Company applied in December 2003 to the South African Revenue Services to obtain tax exemption status
under section 10(1)(e) of the Income Tax Act. In the event of SARS not giving exemption, a liability of R 9 841 147
(including penalties and interest) will be incurred by the Company. The necessary journals will then need to be
processed to reflect the liability. The financial statements as current do not include this possible liability.
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Income tax
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Figures in Rand
8.

2013

2012

Trade and other payables
Trade payables
Membership fees received in advance
Project Funds
VAT

10,724

95,714

342,780

362,802

4,974,234

4,469,626

119,722

15,616

5,447,460

4,943,758

1,878,683

1,820,999

211,901

211,766

37,308

35,636

249,209

247,402

3,000

(341)

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximate their fair value.
9.

Revenue
Membership income

10.

Operating profit
Operating profit for the year is stated after accounting for the following :
Operating lease charges
Premises
• Contractual amounts
Equipment
• Contractual amounts

Profit / Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Impairments

(34,600)

-

Depreciation

37,040

37,843

4,192,427

4,145,517

4,481,676

4,430,421

4,053,953

3,780,685

35,000

34,211

6,270,173

5,864,817

Depreciation and amortisation

37,040

37,843

(Profit)/Loss on sale of assets

(3,000)

341

(4,053,953)

(3,780,685)

114,810

28,862

Employee costs

11.

Investment revenue
Bank

12.

Auditors remuneration
Fees

13.

Cash generated from operation
Profit before taxation
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Adjustments for:

Interest received
Movements in provisions
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

(608,916)

847,768

503,702

(2,620,888)

2,259,856

378,058
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14.

Related parties
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Management fees received - Tourism Marketing South Africa

15.

8,112,639

6,748,171

Director’s emoluments
EXECUTIVE
2013

Emoluments

For services as director

1,525,148

2012

Emoluments

For services as director
16.

1,407,252

Total
1,525,148
Total
1,407,252

Risk management
LIQUIDITY RISK
The company’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The company
manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.
At 31 December 2013

Less than
1 year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

Trade and other payables

5,447,460

-

-

-

At 31 December 2012

Less than
1 year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

Trade and other payables

4,943,758

-

-

-

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk consists mainly of other debtors and cash and cash equivalents. The company only deposits cash with
major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
Financial instrument
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables

2013

2013

25,187,419

22,060,692

2,225,327

1,628,825

INTEREST RATE RISK

Contingent liability
No contingent liabilities
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The company exposes itself to interest rate risk by investing in major banks.
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
Figures in Rand

Notes

2013

2012

REVENUE
Membership income

9

Gross profit

1,878,683

1,820,999

1,878,683

1,820,999

4,053,953

3,780,685

OTHER INCOME
Interest received - bank and other investments

11

Management fees: Tourism Marketing South Africa

8,112,639

6,748,171

Project Income

-

1,644,862

Bad debts recovered

-

66,425

Profit on fixed assets

3,000

-

12,169,592

12,240,143

(35,000)

(34,211)

(8,679)

(8,207)

(118,013)

(103,992)

(42,480)

(101,611)

(1,338)

(2,256)

(37,040)

(37,843)

(4,192,427)

(4,145,517)

(24,694)

(20,254)

(249,209)

(247,402)

(55,939)

(10,000)

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Auditor’s remuneration

12

Bank charges
Computer expenses
Consulting and professional fees
Data storage
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Employee costs
Insurance
Lease rentals on operating lease
Legal expense
Loss on fixed assets

-

Marketing

(195,740)

(276,391)

Meetings: Board & AGM

(363,704)

(303,331)

Membership Fees

(50,219)

(50,000)

Office expenses

(20,055)

(4,978)

Office building expenses

(14,916)

-

Courier & Postage
PR & Communications
Repairs and maintenance
Stationery
Stategic projects

50

Telephone and fax
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(341)

(1,186)

(809)

(727,774)

(480,871)

(9,863)

(22,278)

(12,622)

(11,573)

(1,218,658)

(2,044,650)

(59,378)

(60,378)

Travel - local

(105,551)

(82,881)

Travel - overseas

(233,617)

(146,551)

(7,778,102)

(8,196,325)

Operating profit

6,270,173

5,864,817

Surplus for the year

6,270,173

5,864,817

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.
Annexure 1

TOMSA CORPORATE PROFILE

How does business benefit from supporting
TOMSA?
Mutually beneficial relationship
TOMSA facilitates a mutually beneficial relationship
between business operating in the local travel and
tourism industry and the country’s national destination
marketing organisation, South African Tourism.
For business, it is important that its views, hands-on
knowledge and insights are taken into account when
embarking on marketing campaigns to promote the
destination. In turn, tourism operators also acknowledge
that implementing marketing campaigns of this nature
can be a costly affair; hence the industry’s commitment
to raise funds in support of the country’s destination
marketing efforts.
Essentially, TOMSA is about developing a joint approach
between business, government and the wider public
to collectively promote the destination for the overall
benefit of the industry and the broader economy.

Growth in numbers
Since its inception TOMSA has grown from collecting
R26 million in the year 2000, to collecting in excess
of R100 million fourteen years later. Over the same
period, the promotion of destination South Africa
has increased dramatically and South Africa is now

South African Tourism has also recognised the value that
can be found in the African markets and is increasingly
expanding its promotional activities to reach new
audiences within the Continent and within the BRICs
countries. With additional funding from TOMSA, the
marketing reach continues to expand thus opening doors
to new markets and new business opportunities for
industry.

How much is the levy?
In broad terms levy collection constitutes paying over 1%
of each confirmed booking towards the TOMSA fund. The
levies are paid by the tourist and the business merely acts
as a collector of the levies to be paid over to the TBCSA.
In its capacity as administrator, the TBCSA ensures that
levies collected are transferred to South African Tourism.
The relationship with South African Tourism is regulated
through two key mechanisms.
• Firstly, through a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) between the TBCSA and SA Tourism. The MOU
includes amongst others, the responsibilities of both
parties and the benefits to accrue to levy collectors;
and the schedule to allow private sector inputs into
South African Tourism’s annual business plans.
• Secondly, through quarterly bilateral meetings
held between the two organisations to discuss the
challenges and opportunities in the sector and
discussing South African Tourism’s marketing and
promotional activities.
Currently, levy collection is largely concentrated at the
Car Rental, Tour Operator and Accommodation sectors,
however, the future plans are to expand this initiative to
other sectors.

51

The concept of a tourism levy is not unique to South
Africa, however what makes TOMSA special is that is
based on voluntary contributions from tourism businesses
that recognise the value of working as a collective to
promote our destination.

actively promoted in twelve core markets around the
world, namely – the USA, UK, Germany, France, Italy,
Netherlands, Kenya, Nigeria, China, Japan, India and
Australia.
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TOMSA stands for Tourism Levy South Africa.
It is a levy collected by businesses operating within the
travel and tourism industry, whose aim is to contribute
to the promotion of South Africa as the preferred tourist
destination, locally and internationally. The tourism levy is
administered by the TBCSA.

MESSAGE FROM TOMSA BOARD CHAIRMAN

TOMSA’s 14th year anniversary celebration has to be one
of the key highlights of 2013. Many of us gathered at the
TOMSA exhibition stand in the ICC, during the annual Tourism
Indaba, to mark this important occasion. It is the significance
of this event that still lingers on as I reflect on the highlights
of year under review.

One might be tempted to pose the question – what
significance? What has TOMSA achieved in the past
fourteen years that is worth celebrating in the first place?
My response to this is PLENTY!
For starters TOMSA’s significance lies in the fact that
South Africa is one of the few (if not the only) tourism
destinations in the world to have a voluntary tourism
levy collection system. Meaning as the travel and tourism
private sector, we have the direct access, ‘share of voice’
and financial muscle to support our country’s destination
marketing efforts through our relationship with SA
Tourism.
Secondly, TOMSA provides a valuable platform to
engage and collaborate on destination marketing
issues. This year’s collaboration with the SA Tourism,
the Tourism Grading Council and the Tourism Enterprise
Partnership on the Power of One road shows was not
only a promotions exercise for TOMSA. It served as a key
vehicle through which we could align TOMSA with other
industry programmes and industry solicit views about
levy collection and the work done to market destination
South Africa.
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Thirdly and perhaps more importantly, despite the
uncertain economic environment within which we
operate, the private sector’s TOMSA contribution to
SA Tourism continues to grow. Fourteen years later,
R923 458 151.00 in levy collections is a far cry from the
R26 315 789.00 we collected in the year 2000.
As we look ahead to our 15th anniversary, it is important
to emphasise that growth in levy collections is not good
enough. It is critical that we also grow our levy collector
base, which means expanding into other industry sectors
which previously did not collect the levy – the demand
from business in these sectors is growing by the day.
In addition, this needs closer collaboration with sector
associations affiliated to the TBCSA and all other relevant
trade formations.

Mr. Franco Jordaan, TOMSA Board Chairman

The responsibility to grow the collector base also lies with
us as individual Board members and industry role-players.
It must become a standard industry practice to use to
support tourism levy collecting organisations within our
own procurement processes. Peer pressure is a method
we should also be adopting to encourage compliance.
In the past year, we have maintained a close relationship
with SA Tourism and continued to hold robust discussions
with them to ensure that levy collectors derive value for
their efforts. The newly-established TBCSA/SA Tourism
Marketing Advisory Board is well-positioned to take these
discussions forward.
In closing, I want to express my deepest gratitude to
all our levy collectors for their unrelenting support.
I also want to thank members of the TOMSA and TBCSA
Boards for their co-operation and backing during the
year under review. Last but not least, I thank TBCSA CEO,
Ms. Mmatšatši Ramawela and her lean team for their
hard-work and dedication to TOMSA.
It is in all our interest to make sure that TOMSA grows
further in the next fourteen years!

Franco Jordaan
TOMSA Board Chairman

TOMSA MARKETING & PROMOTION

Despite a small levy collector base, we are
pleased to report that tourism levy income
continued to rise in the period under review.
This is good news for the industry, as it
means the tourism trade continued to make
a meaningful contribution to the promotion
of destination South Africa locally and
internationally.

IN 2013, we focussed our attention on increasing
awareness about TOMSA within the trade and lifting the
profile of the levy collection initiative across all corners
of the country. Our aim was to ensure that the message
about TOMSA and levy collection is not only concentrated
in the major cities but also filters through to all roleplayers in the industry, large and small.
Our marketing and promotions activities for TOMSA in the
year under review are outlined as follows:

Ms. Boitumelo Moleleki at the Power of One Road Show

Expansion into other industry sectors

As such, we engaged member association ASATA to
recommend a system which will be suitable for operators
in this sector, but will also ensure that it does not
compromise the process of levy collection in the rest
of the tourism chain and lead to a situation of ‘doubledipping’. A possible solution is to have the levy charged
as a percentage of the agent’s service fee, something
that individual agencies affiliated to TOMSA are already
doing. ASATA is still exploring various options which can
be applied to the sector as a whole and we look forward
to concluding our discussions with the association in the
New Year.
Business Events are another sector where we have
started to engage. We have noted how business events
are emerging as a significant player within the travel and

Tomsa Association Initiative
The aim of this initiative is to partner with sector
associations within the industry to increase the tourism
levy collector base. The initiative was introduced two
years ago and in the period under review we formalised
our partnership with the Federated Hospitality
Association of South Africa (FEDHASA) Inland and Cape
regions and Tshwane Tourism Association.
We have already hosted a number of training sessions
with the association’s staff members and are optimistic
that this approach will make a difference in expanding our
collector base further in the coming year.

Tourism Indaba 2013
In 2013, TOMSA marked its 14th year anniversary and to
celebrate we opted to incorporate this into our TOMSA
promotional campaign at Indaba.
The occasion was marked through a cocktail event at the
TBCSA/TOMSA exhibition stand and the stand design
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For sometime, individual travel
agencies have been approaching
us, seeking to contribute to the
collection of the tourism levy.

tourism space and we believe that the sector can make
a significant contribution to TOMSA. Details on how the
sector can contribute and benefit from TOMSA are still
under discussion with TBCSA member association SAACI
(The Southern African Association for the Conference
Industry) and we also hope to conclude these discussions
in the new financial period.
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The growth of our levy collector base is a priority for us
and in the year under review, we embarked continued
to engage other sectors within travel and tourism who
are not traditionally associated with the concept of levy
collection to reconsider their support for TOMSA.

TOMSA MARKETING & PROMOTION
included a special design to highlight the anniversary.
As part of the festivities, we also launched a TOMSA
promotional video, where key industry leaders including
the CEO of SA Tourism share their views about TOMSA
and its value to the industry.
The promotional video is available on the TOMSA website
and can be viewed and downloaded on the online video
platform YouTube. A limited number of DVDs will also
be distributed to levy collectors who are keen to use it as
part of their own promotional campaigns. Furthermore,
the video now forms part of our TOMSA promotional
campaigns and presentations.

Our Indaba collateral
included updated versions
of our TOMSA brochures
and we are in the final stages
of finalising our TOMSA ‘How To’
booklet which will be available
in 2014.
Indaba also serves as an important platform for us to
host face to face meeting with current and prospective
levy collectors. We took advantage of this platform to
also engage local tourism association, urging them to
encourage their members to spread the message about
TOMSA and promote levy collection.

Power of one provincial road shows
Instead of hosting our annual collector feedback
sessions in the major centres, this year we adopted a
different approach by partnering with SA Tourism and
the Grading Council to host provincial Power of One
Road Shows.
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The Tourism Enterprise Partnership (TEP) and the National
Department of Tourism also formed part of the road
shows which largely focussed on reaching the tourism
trade located in the smaller towns. This year we visited
15 small towns across the nine provinces and were
successful in promoting TOMSA to small establishment

(CONTINUED)

who did not know or did not have a clear understanding
of the levy collection process.
We received good feedback from the attendees on the
insightful presentations and opportunities accessible
to tourism and hospitality products across all sectors.
The road show was regarded as the best model for
the alignment of the industry by having five industry
stakeholders presenting different offerings to the trade
through one platform.

Industry associations events
TOMSA formed part of the South African Youth
Travel Confederation (SAYTC) and SATSA Gauteng
and Western Cape Chapter AGM programmes.
Presentations were made at the three events and
focused on in the importance of collecting the tourism
levy and encouraged tourism products to continue to
collect the levy.

Stakeholder engagements
Tourism Empowerment Council of South Africa (TECSA)
and the National Department of Tourism (NDT) invited
South African National Accreditation System (SANAS),
Department of Trade and Industry (the dti) and the
Independent Regular Board of Auditors (IRBA) to meet
with TOMSA. The aim of the meeting was to clarify,
educate stakeholders on the Tourism levy collection
system in relation to B-BBEE points on the Tourism
Scorecard. New updates on the required documents
for BEE verifications were discussed in detail. The
engagement resulted in improved communications with
BEE verification agencies on the awarding of BEE points
for TOMSA levy collectors.

Implementation of tomsa benefits
SA Tourism and TBCSA signed a three-year Memorandum
of Understanding that includes tourism levy collector
benefits. During the period under review, tourism levy
collectors accessed benefits including discounts for
exhibiting at trade shows, discounted tourism grading
fees including BEE points.
Through quarterly and bi-monthly meetings with SA
Tourism, we are able to track progress in this regard.

Conclusion
TOMSA levies have made a significant contribution to South African Tourism marketing efforts. The industry
collected over 26 million in the first year and 14 years later over R100 million has been collected. This is an
indication that if the entire industry was collecting, this number would be ten times higher. For our industry
to receive an influx of tourists, we all need to play our part and add value to tourism by collecting the
tourism levy.

TOMSA ANNUAL COLLECTIONS
2006 – 2013
COLLECTED

Total collections from 2006 to 2013

2006

61, 988 524.00

2007

73, 725 095.00

2008

86, 299 441.00

120 000 000.00

2009

80, 744 659.00

100 000 000.00

2010

97, 829 460.00

2011

96, 183 488.00

2012

102, 831 670.52

60 000 000.00

2013

115, 894 847.55

40 000 000.00

140 000 000.00

80 000 000.00

20 000 000.00
–
2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

TOMSA MONTHLY COLLECTIONS
2012 vs 2013
2012

TOTAL Y.T.D.

2013

January

9,324,246

10,897,988

February

9,314,301

9,107,750

March

8,079,249

9,247,012

April

9,083,393

10,087,909

May

6,505,123

9,214,128

June

9,180,878

8,957,753

July

8,315,847

9,252,494

August

8,221,954

8,719,492

September

7,915,872

9,707,953

October

9,065,646

10,428,703

November

9,501,753

8,550,210

December

8,323,409

11,723,455

2012
		102,831,671
2013
		115,894,847

14,000,000
12,000,000
10,000,000
8,000,000

4,000,000
2,000,000
–

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul
2012

Aug
2013

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec
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6,000,000

TOMSA COLLECTIONS
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Levy Collections per Group
2013

2012

Hotels

88, 545 834.52

76.402%

Hotels

75, 485 491.10

73.407%

Car Hire

21, 528 378.60

18.576%

Car Hire

22, 900 689.37

22.270%

Resorts

1, 661 651.62

1.434%

Resorts

1, 452 978.83

1.413%

Game Lodges

2, 905 392.54

2.507%

Game Lodges

1, 793 757.59

1.744%

Tour Operators

710 019.98

0.613%

Tour Operators

692 976.74

0.674%

Guest Houses

462 239.45

0.399%

Guest Houses

455 186.46

0.443%

80 257.15

0.069%

B & B’s

50 590.43

0.049%

1 073.69

0.001%

Conference Venues

–

0.000%

115, 894 847.55

473

102, 831 670.52

506

Hotels

68, 455 110.69

71.171%

Car Hire

23, 576 345.61

24.512%

Resorts

1, 636 066.03

1.701%

Game Lodges

1, 327 400.55

1.380%

Tour Operators

644, 076.98

0670%

Guest Houses

464, 762.68

0.483%

79, 725.74

0.083%

–

0.000%

96, 183 488.28

491

B & B’s
Conference Venues

2011

B & B’s
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Conference Venues
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These financial statements have been audited in compliance with 			
the applicable requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.			
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Level of assurance			

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Management of Tourism Marketing South Africa NPC
We have audited the financial statements of Tourism Marketing South Africa NPC, as set out on pages 60 to 65, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Tourism Marketing
of South Africa NPC as at 31 December 2013, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.
Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention the fact that the company applied in December 2003 to the South
African Revenue Services to obtain tax exemption status under section 10(1)(e) of the Income Tax Act. In the event of
the South African Revenue Services not giving exemption, and estimated liability of R39 878 163 (including penalties and
interest) will be incurred by the company. The financial statements at the moment do not include the recognition of the
South African Revenue Services liability (refer to note 7).
We would also like to draw attention to the fact that, due to the payments received being voluntary, it is not feasible for
the entity to implement accounting controls over all collections prior to the initial entry of the collections in the accounting
records. Accordingly, it was impractical for us to extend our examination beyond the receipts actually recorded and can
therefore only express an opinion on the completeness of revenue actually recorded.
Supplementary information
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We draw your attention to the fact that the supplementary information set out in Annexure 1 does not form part of the
financial statements and is presented as additional information. We have not audited this information and accordingly do
not express an opinion thereon.
TENK LOUBSER & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants (S.A.)
Registered Auditors
Per: M.A. Oberholzer
Director
28 February 2014
Johannesburg
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL
The directors are required to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity
of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to
ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial
year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Board. The external auditors are engaged to express
an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
issued by the International Accounting Board and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied
and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to
meet these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error
or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.
These controls are monitored throughout the company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical
standards in ensuring the company’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above
reproach. The focus of risk management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known
forms of risk across the company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise
it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the company’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2014 and, in the light of this
review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the company has or has access to adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the company’s annual financial
statements.
The annual financial statements have been examined by the company’s external auditors and their report is presented on
page 58.

______________________________________________

______________________________________________

Director		

Director
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The annual financial statements set out on pages 61 to 62, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the board of directors on 28 February 2014 and were signed on its behalf by:
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DIRECTORS’ Report
The directors submit their report for the year ended 31 December 2013
1.	REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES
MAIN BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS
	The company is engaged in services and operates principally in South Africa.
	The operating results and state of affairs of the comapny are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements
and do not in our opinion require any further comment.
	Net surplus / (deficit) of the company was R 1 141 866.38 (2012: R (746 176.54)).
2.

GOING CONCERN

	The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going
concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of
assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments wil occur in the ordinary course of
business.
3.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

	The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year.
4.

DIRECTORS
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	The directors of the Company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:
Name

Nationality

AP Brearley

British

AW Dooley

South African

AN Griffin

British

RNE Heckscher

German

FH Jordaan (Chairman)

South African

M Msimang

South African

GA Pretorius

South African

ME Ramawela

South African

LJF Smith

British

J Tait

South African

T Mthombeni

South African

17 September 2013

G Westphal

South African

17 September 2013

5.

Appointment / *** Resignation date

31 May 2013

****

AUDITORS
Tenk Loubser & Associates will continue in office in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.

6.	REGISTERED ADDRESS
245 End Street
Clubview
0157
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Figures in Rand

Notes

2013

2012

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

2

-

-

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

3

66,531,682

61,146,486

66,531,682

61,146,486

66,531,682

61,146,486

35,578,996

34,437,129

30,952,686

26,709,357

Provisions

30,952,686

26,709,357

Total Equity and Liabilities

66,531,682

61,146,486

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Retained surplus
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

4

Notes

2013

2012

Total levies collected

5

115,894,848

102,831,671

Contribution to South African Tourism

6

(106,596,787)

(96,747,144)

9,298,061

6,084,526

(8,156,194)

(6,830,703)

Operating surplus / (deficit)

1,141,866

(746,177)

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year

1,141,866

(746,177)

Gross surplus
Administrative expenses

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive surplus / (Deficit)

9

1,141,866

(746,177)
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Retained
surplus

Figures in Rand
Balance at 01 January 2012

Total
equity

35,183,305

35,183,305

Total comprehensive deficit for the year

(746,177)

(746,177)

Total changes

(746,177)

(746,177)

34,437,129

34,437,129

Total comprehensive surplus for the year

1,141,866

1,141,866

Total changes

1,141,866

1,141,866

35,578,996

35,578,996

Changes in equity

Balance at 01 January 2013
Changes in equity

Balance at 31 December 2013

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Figures in Rand

Notes

2013

2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operations

10

Net cash from operating activities

115,894,848

102,831,671

(110,509,652)

(97,897,814)

5,385,196

4,933,857

5,385,196

4,933,857

5,385,196

4,933,857

61,146,486

56,212,630

66,531,682

61,146,486

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Total cash movement for the year
Cash at beginning of the year
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Total cash at end of the year

3
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.	PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

	The residual value, useful life and depreciation
method of each asset is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period. If the expectations
	The annual financial statements have been prepared
differ from previous estimates, the change
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
is accounted for as a change in accounting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
estimate.
Standards Board, and the Companies Act of South
Africa. The annual financial statements have been
		Each part of an item of property, plant and
prepared on the historical cost basis, except where
equipment with a cost that is significant
otherwise indicated, and incorporate the principal
in relation to the total cost of the item is
accounting policies set out below. They are presented
depreciated separately.
in South African Rands.
		The depreciation charge for each period
	These accounting policies are consistent with the
is recognised in profit or loss unless it is
previous period.
included in the carrying amount of another
asset.
1.1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1.2 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

		Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on the straight line basis over their expected
useful lives to their estimated residual value.
		The useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item
Computer software

Average useful life		
2 years

		
Fair value determination
		The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. If the market for
a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the company establishes fair value
by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, and option pricing models making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as
little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
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		Property, plant and equipment is carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.
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		The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset when:
		
Initial recognition and measurement
		
-	it is probable that future economic benefits 		The company classifies financial instruments,
associated with the item will flow to the
or their component parts, on initial
company; and
recognition as a financial asset, a financial
		
-	the cost of the item can be measured
liability or an equity instrument in accordance
reliably.
with the substance of the contractual
arrangement.
		Property, plant and equipment is initially
measured at cost.
		Financial instruments are measured initially
at fair value, except for equity investments for
		Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire
which a fair value is not determinable, which
or construct an item of property, plant and
are measured at cost and are classified as
equipment and cost incurred subsequently to add
available for sale financial assets.
to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of
		Financial assets and financial liabilities are
an item of property, plant and equipment,
recognised on the company’s balance sheet
the carrying amount of the replaced part is
when the company becomes party to the
derecognised.
contractual provisions of the instrument.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
		
Trade and other receivables
1.3 TURNOVER
		Trade receivables are measured at initial
	Turnover comprises of levies collected on behalf
recognition at fair value, and are subsequently
of South African Tourism.
measured at amortised cost using the effective
		Turnover is measured at the fair value of the
interest rate method. Appropriate allowances
consideration received or receivable and
for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
represents the amounts receivable for all the
recognised in profit or loss when there is
levies collected on behalf of South African
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.
Tourism, deducting the value added tax
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
amount.
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or
1.4	REVENUE
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days
overdue) are considered indicators that the
		When the outcome of a transaction involving
trade receivable is impaired. The allowance
the rendering of services can be estimated
recognised is measured as the difference
reliably, revenue associated with the transaction
between the asset’s carrying amount and
is recognised by reference to the stage of
the present value of estimated future cash
completion of the transaction at the end of the
flows discounted at the effective interest rate
reporting period.
computed at initial recognition.
		The outcome of a transaction can be estimated
reliably when all the following conditions are
satisfied :
		
•	the amount of revenue can be measured
		The company assesses its trade receivables
reliably;
for impairment at each balance sheet date.
		
•	it is probable that the economic benefits
In determining whether an impairment loss
associated with the transaction will flow to
should be recorded in the income statement,
the company;
the company makes judgements as to whether
•	the stage of completion of the transaction
there is observable data indicating a measurable
at the end of the reporting period can be
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
measured reliably; and
a financial asset.
		
•	the costs incurred for the transaction and
the costs to complete the transaction can be
		
Trade and other payables
measured reliably.
		Trade payables are initially measured at fair
value, and are subsequently measured at
		When the outcome of a transaction involving the
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably,
method.
revenue shall be recognised only to the extent of
the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
		
Cash and cash equivalents
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		Trade and other receivables are classified as
loans and receivables

		Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
		Revenue is measured at fair value of the
hand and demand deposits, and other shortconsideration received or receivable and
term highly liquid investments that are readily
represents the amounts receivable for goods
convertible to a known amount of cash and are
and services provided in the normal course of
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
business, net of trade discounts and volume
These are initially and subsequently recorded at
rebates, and value added tax.
fair value.
		Service fees included in the price of the product
are recognised as revenue over the period during
which the service is performed.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Figures in Rand
2.

2013

Property, plant and equipment

2012

2013
Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
Value

Computer software

21,721

(21,721)

-

Total

21,721

(21,721)

-

2012
Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
Value

Computer software

21,721

(21,721)

-

Total

21,721

(21,721)

-

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2013
Opening
Balance
Computer software

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2012
Opening
Balance
Computer software

3.

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

1,810

-

-

(1,810)

-

1,810

-

-

(1,810)

-

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist
of:
Bank balances

66,531,682

61,146,486

1,176,361

801,579

Cash and bank earns interest at floating rate based on a daily bank deposit rate.

TBCSA Management fee payable
VAT
South African Tourism

1,526,309

1,165,174

28,250,016

24,742,604

30,952,686

26,709,357
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Trade and other payables
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5.

Revenue
Rendering of services

6.

102,831,671

106,596,787

96,747,144

Direct cost
Cost of services rendered

7.

115,894,848

Taxation
No taxation has been provided, since the company is in the process of applying for tax exemption under section
10(1)(e) of the Income Tax Act. In the event of SARS not giving exemption, an estimated liability of R 39 878 163
(including penalties and interest) will be incurred by the company. This liability has not been recorded in the
accounting records and is classified as a contingent liability.

8.

Auditors’ remuneration
Fees

9.

35,000

35,000

-

1,810

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses for the period is stated after accounting for the following:
Depreciation

10.

Cash used in operations
Surplus / (Deficit) before taxation

1,141,866

(746,177)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation

-

1,810

-

1,686,193

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

11.

4,243,330

3,992,030

5,385,196

4,933,857

Related parties
Relationships
Tourism Business Council of South
Africa

Under similar management control

South African Tourism
Related party balances
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Tourism Business Council of South Africa
Fees payable to TBCSA

1,176,361

801,579

8,112,639

6,748,171

106,596,787

96,747,144

Related party transactions
Tourism Business Council of South Africa
Management fees paid
South African Tourism
Levies paid
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Risk Management
LIQUIDITY RISK
The company’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The company
manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.
At 31 December 2013
Trade and other payables
At 31 December 2012
Trade and other payables

Less than 1
year
30,952,686
Less than 1
year
26,709,357

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Between 1
and 2 years

Over 5 years

Between 2
and 5 years

-

Over 5 years

-

-

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk consists mainly of other debtors and cash and cash equivalents. The company only deposits cash with
major bank with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Financial instrument
Cash and cash equivalents

2013

2012

66,531,682

61,146,486
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Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
Figures in Rand

2013

2012

115,894,848

102,831,671

(106,596,787)

(96,747,144)

9,298,061

6,084,526

REVENUE
Levies collected
DIRECT COST
Contribution to South African Tourism
Gross surplus
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Auditors remuneration

(35,000)

(35,000)

Bank charges

(8,555)

(8,980)

Depreciation

-

(1,810)

Legal fees

-

(36,742)

Management services

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year

(8,112,639)

(6,748,171)

(8,156,194)

(6,830,703)

1,141,866

(746,177)

Annual Report 2013

68

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual fianacial statements and is unaudited

Annexure 1

TOMSA BOARD MEMBERS

Lance Smith
Deputy Board Chairman &
Sales Executive, AVIS

Mavuso Msimang
TBCSA Board Chairman

Mmatšatši Ramawela
CEO, TBCSA

Nils Heckscher
Preceding Board Chairman &
CEO, Not Just Hotels

Nic Griffin
CEO, The Thornybush
Collection

Themba Mthombeni
CEO, Duma Travel

Paddy Brealey
CEO, Legacy Hotels
& Resorts

Gail Westphal
GM, Goodersons Leisure

Alistair Dooley
Divisional Director Financials,
City Lodge Hotels

Kobus Tait
National Chairman, Tourism
Commitee AHI & MD Forever
Resorts
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Franco Jordaan
Board Chairman & MD Court
Classique Hotels

TOMSA LEVY COLLECTORS IN GOOD STANDING
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TOMSA Levy Collectors at 31 December 2013
Hotel Formula 1 Richards Bay
Hotel Formula 1 Southgate
Hotel Formula 1 Vereeniging
Hotel Formula 1 Witbank
Hotel Formula 1 Wynberg
Hotel Formula Inn Park Station
Hotel Tzaneen
House Of Pharaohs
Hout Bay Manor
Houw Hoek Inn
Humewood Hotel
Hunters Country House
Hyatt Regency Johannesburg
Hyatt Regency Oubaai Golf Resort
& Spa
IFA Zimbali Lodge
Ilanga Travel
Inn On The Square
International House
Cape Town
Intundla Game Lodge
ISO Leisure Woodmead
Jock Safari Lodge
Jozini Tiger Lodge
Kagga Kamma
Kamieskroon Hotel
Kapenta Bay Hotel
Kingfisher Lodge
Klein Welmoed Luxury
Guest House
Kleinkaap
Kloofzicht Lodge
Kokerboom Motel
Kraal Kombuis
Kwa Maritane Game Lodge
La Maison - Hatfield
Laureate Private Resorts
Le Franschhoek Hotel
Leeuwenhof Country Lodge
Leeuwenvoet House
Legacy All Suites Management
Services
Lekkerwijn Guest House
Leriba Hotel And Spa
Lesedi Cultural Village
Luxury Car
Lythwood Lodge
Mad-Meerkat Tours
Makalali Private Game Reserve
Makaranga Garden Lodge

Mala Mala Ranch
Mandela Rhodes Hotel & Spa
Marine Dynamics Shark Tours
Maropeng A’Africa Leisure
Mary Reynolds Agency Services
Masibambane Guest House
Masonic Hotel Springbok
Matoppo Inn
Mercure Hotel Premier Lodge
Nelspruit
Mercure Inn Midrand
Mercure Inn Randburg Waterfront
Mercure Premier Lodge
Bedfordview
Michelle’s Travel Agency
Mkuze Falls Game Reserve
Mmabatho Palms Hotel Casino &
Convention Resort
Modimolle Funky Stay
Mondazur Resort Estate Hotel
Mopani Country Lodge
Morula Sun
Mount Grace Country House Hotel
Mount Nelson Hotel
Murraystreet 137 Guest House
Naledi Sun
Ngala Game Reserve
NH Plettenberg Bay
NH The Lord Charles
Nkomazi Game Reserve
Oaklands Country Manor
Ocean View House
One And Only Cape Town
Oxbow Country Estate
Oyster Box Hotel
Park Inn Cape Town Foreshore
Park Inn Sandton
Parker Travel & Parker Tours
Peermont Global - Graceland Hotel
Peermont Global - Rio Hotel
Peermont Global Tusk
Taung Hotel
Pepper Club Hotel Management
Pestana Kruger Lodge
Pezula Resort Hotel
Phinda Forest
Phinda Mountain
Pine Lake Shareblock
Plattner Golf
Plettenberg Park Hotel & Spa

Portswood Hotel
Protea Cape Castle Hotel
Protea Hotel Breakwater Lodge
Protea Hotel Christiana
Protea Hotel Clarens
Protea Hotel Empangeni
Protea Hotel Franschoek
Protea Hotel Hazyview
Protea Hotel Highveld
Protea Hotel Kimberley
Protea Hotel Kruger Gate
Protea Hotel Mafikeng
Protea Hotel Nelspruit
Protea Hotel North Wharf
Protea Hotel O.R. Tambo
Protea Hotel Outeniqua
Protea Hotel President
Protea Hotel Ranch Resort & Lion
Park
Protea Hotel Richards Bay
Protea Hotel Sea Point
Protea Hotel Stellenbosch
Protea Hotel The Park
Protea Hotel Umfolozi River
Protea Hotel Umhlanga Ridge
Protea Hotel Willow Lake
Protea Hotel Winkler
Protea Hotel Balalaika &Crown
Court
Protea Hotel Bloemfontein
Protea Hotel Bloemfontein Central
Protea Hotel Capital
Protea Hotel Centurion
Protea Hotel Cumberland
Worcester
Protea Hotel Edward
Protea Hotel Fire & Ice Melrose
Arch
Protea Hotel Fire and Ice - Cape
Town
Protea Hotel Hatfield
Protea Hotel Hilton
Protea Hotel Hluhluwe
& Safaris
Protea Hotel Imperial - P/
Maritzburg
Protea Hotel Island Club
Protea Hotel Karridene Beach
Protea Hotel King George
Protea Hotel Klerksdorp

Rosetta House
Rovos Rail
Royal African Discoveries
Royal Elephant Hotel & Conference
Royal Palm Hotel
Sanbona Wildlife Reserve
Seaforth Farm B & B
Shamwari Game Reserve
Shishangeni Lodge
Sibaya Casino & Entertainment
Kingdom
Silverstar Casino
Simon’s Town Quayside Hotel
Singita
Singita Lebombo
Sizwe Car Rental
Southern Sun Hotel Interests
Springbok Hotel
ST James On Knysna
Stable Inn Conference Centre
Standard Hotel
Steenberg Hotel
Stormsrivier Adventures
Sun City Cascades Hotel
Sun City Hotel
Sure Zorgvliet Travel
Table Bay Hotel
Tempest Car Hire
Thakadu River Camp
The Blades Bed & Breakfast
The Blue Train
The Boardwalk Hotel, Convention
Centre & Spa
The Cabanas
The Carousel
The Crowne Plaza Rosebank Hotel
The Docklands Hotel
The Fairway Hotel & Spa
The Kelway Hotel CC
The Lakes Hotel
The Last Word Constantia
The Last Word Franschhoek
The Last Word Long Beach
The Marion on Nicol
The Michelangelo
The Palace
The Peech Hotel
The Peninsula
The Plettenberg
The Rex Hotel
The Richards Hotel
The Ridge - Jack’s Corner

The Riverside Hotel & Spa
The Saxon Boutique Hotel, Villas
and Spa
The Square Boutique Hotel & Spa
The Thornybush Collection
The Townhouse Hotel
The Turbine Hotel & Spa
The Twelve Apostles Hotel
The Urban Hotel Kathu
The Vacation Club
The Village at Spier
Thompson South Africa
Thula Thula Game Reserve & Safari
Tour D’ Afrique
Tourvest Inbound Operations
Town Lodge - Bellville
Town Lodge - George
Town Lodge - Jhb Int Airport
Town Lodge - Menlo Park
Town Lodge - Nelspruit
Town Lodge - Polokwane
Town Lodge - Port Elizabeth
Town Lodge - Roodepoort
Town Lodge - Sandton
Town Lodge - Midrand
Tsala Treetop Lodge
Tshukudu Lodge
Tsogo Sun Newcastle
Tzaneen Country Lodge & Spa
Ulusaba Rocklodge
Umbhaba Lodge
Umhlanga Sands
Umhluhluwe Safaris
Upper Eastside Hotel
Urban Park Hotel and Spa
Victoria Hotel - Bredasdorp
Villa Roma Boutique Hotel &
Conference Centre
Vineyards Hotel & Spa
Walkersons Country Manor
Welgelen Manor
Westin Grand Cape Town Arabella
Quays
Whispering Pines Country Estate
Wild Coast Sun Hotel & Casino
Wilderness Manzengwenya
Willowbrook Lodge
Winchester Mansions Hotel
Windmill Lodge
Windmill Ridge
Worcester Casino
XL Oceanair Travel
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Protea Hotel Knysna Quays
Protea Hotel Landmark Polokwane
Protea Hotel Manor
Protea Hotel Marine Port Elizabeth
Protea Hotel Midrand
Protea Hotel Roodepoort
Protea Hotel Saldanha Bay
Protea Hotel Transit
Protea Hotel Tyger Valley
Protea Hotel Umhlanga
Protea Hotel Upington
Protea Hotel Victoria Junction
Protea Hotel Wanderers
Protea Hotel Waterfront
Richards Bay
Protea Hotel Witbank
Protea Oasis Lodge Upington
Protea Parktonian All Suite Hotel
Protea Riempie Estate Hotel
Quarters Hotel
Queens Hotel - Oudtshoorn
Radisson Blu Gautrain Hotel
Radisson Blu Hotel - Sandton
Radisson Hotel - Port Elizabeth
Riviera Holiday Resort
Riviera On Vaal Hotel & Country
Club
Road Lodge - Carnival City
Road Lodge - Centurion
Road Lodge - Durban
Road Lodge - East London
Road Lodge - Germiston
Road Lodge - Isando
Road Lodge - Port Elizabeth
Road Lodge - Port Elizabeth Airport
Road Lodge - Potchefstroom
Road Lodge - Randburg
Road Lodge - Richards Bay
Road Lodge - Rivonia
Road Lodge - Umhlanga Ridge
Road Lodge - Bloemfontein Airport
Road Lodge - Cape Town Int Airport
Road Lodge - JHB Int Airport
Road Lodge - Kimberley
Road Lodge - N1 City
Road Lodge - Nelspruit
Road Lodge - Rustenburg
Road Lodge - Southgate
Rockwell All Suite Hotel
Romney Park Luxury Suites
Rosebank Travel Service
Rosenhof Country House
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KEY TRAVEL & TOURISM CONTACTS
Tourism Levy South Africa (TOMSA)
Tourism Safety Initiative (TSI)
Tourism Business Index
Hotel Investment Conference Africa

012 654 2660
012 654 2660
012 654 2660
012 654 2660

tomsa@tbcsa.travel
info@tourismsafety.co.za
pr@tbcsa.travel
hica@tbcsa.travel

www.tomsa.co.za
www.tourismsafety.co.za
www.tbcsa.travel
www.hica.co.za

011 895 3000
011 895 3000

travel@southafrica.net
feedback@tourismgrading.co.za

www.southafrica.net
www.tourismgrading.co.za

011 217 0600

info@cathsseta.org.za

www.theta.org.za

011 723 1400
011 483 0122
012 310 8911

customercare@airports.co.za
info@brandsouthafrica.com
info@statssa.gov.za

www.acsa.co.za
www.brandsouthafrica.com
www.stassa.gov.za

012 444 6000
012 309 3657
0800 60 11 90
012 431 1000
012 394 1006

callcentre@tourism.gov.za
KhozaC@dot.gov.za
csc@dha.gov.za
info@dpe.gov.za
odgcorrrespondence@economic.gov.za

www.tourism.gov.za
www.transport.gov.za
www.dha.gov.za
www.dpe.gov.za
www.economic.gov.za

012 310 3911
0123958000
012 351 1000

callcentre@environment.gov.za
DG@health.gov.za
consular@dirco.co.za

www.environment.gov.za
www.doh.gov.za
www.dfa.gov.za

0861 843 384
10111

contactus@thedti.gov.za

www.thedti.gov.za
www.saps.gov.za

021 426 5640
043 701 9600
051 444 0297
0867867170
015 293 3655
031 305 6693
013 752 4186
018 397 1660
053 831 2937

www.tourismcapetown.co.za
www.ectourism.co.za
www.freestatetourism.org
www.visitgauteng.net
www.golimpopo.com
www.zulu.org.za
www.mpumalanga.com
www.tourismnorthwest.co.za
www.northencape.org.za

State Agencies and Parastatals
South African Tourism
Tourism Grading Council of South
Africa (TGCSA)
Cultural, Arts, Sports and Tourism
Training Authority (CATHSSETA)
Airports Company South Africa
Brand South Africa
Statistics South Africa

National Government Departments
Department of Tourism
Department of Transport
Department 0f Home Affairs
Department of Public Enterprises
Department of Economic
Development
Department of Environmental Affairs
Department of Health
Department of International
Realtions & Cooperation
Department of Trade & Industry
South African Police Service

PROVINCIAL TOURISM AUTHORITIES
Cape Routes Unlimited
Eastern Cape Tourism Authority
Free State Tourism Authority
Gauteng Tourism Authority
Limpopo Tourism Authority
KwaZulu Natal Tourism Authority
Mpumalanga Tourism and Parks
North West Parks and Tourism Board
Northern Cape Tourism

021 405 4500
043 742 4450
051 411 4300
011 639 1600
011 085 2500
031 366 7500
013 759 5300
018 397 1500
053 832 2657
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SOUTH AFRICAN TRADE & INVESTMENT AGENCIES
Gauteng Economic Development
Agency
Eastern Cape Development
Corporation
Trade and Investment KwaZulu Natal
Free State Development Corporation
Mpumalanga Economic Growth
Agency
Invest North-West
Northern Cape Economic
Development Agency
Western Cape Investment Trade
Promotion Agency
Trade and Investment Limpopo

011 833 8750

011 833 8930

www.geda.co.za

043 704 5600

043 704 5700

www.ecdc.co.za

031 368 9600
051 400 0800
013 656 3231

031 368 5888
051 447 0929
013 6563241

www.tikzn.co.za
www.fdc.co.za
www.mega.gov.za

014 594 2570
053 833 1503

014 590 2575
053 833 1390

www.inw.org.za
www.nceda.co.za

021 487 8600

021 487 8700

www.wesgro.org.za

015 295 5171

015 295 5197

www.til.co.za

PHYSICAL ADDRESS
Leriba Lodge
245 End Street
Clubview
0157
POSTAL ADDRESS
PO Box 11655
Centurion
0046
Tel: +27 12 654 2660
Fax: +27 12 654 7394
E-mail: tourism@tbcsa.travel
E-mail: tomsa@tbcsa.travel
www.tbcsa.travel • www.tbcsa.org.za
www.tomsa.co.za
www.hica.co.za

